
STATE OF NEW HAMPSm^,2o ^-nT ̂ run ̂
Office of Strategic Initiatives ^ kcvu

107 Pleasant Street, Johnson Hall

Concord, NH 03301-3834
Division of Planning

»  Telephone: (603) 271-2155Christopher T. SUNLTNU . Fax-(603) 271-2615 Division OF Energy
Governor ' www.nh.gov/osi

November 30, 2020

His Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council

State House

Concord, New Hampshire 03301

REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the Office of Strategic Initiatives (OSI) to enter into a SOLE SOURCE contract with Tri-County
Community Action Program, Inc. (VC # 177195), Berlin, NH, in the amount of $ 117,140.00 to supplement the
Agency's Weatherization Assistance Program (WAP), effective January 1, 2021, through December 31, 2021,
upon approval of Governor and Executive Council. 100% Federal Funds. (LIHEAP-US DHHS)

Funding is available in the following account, contingent upon the availability and continued appropriation of
funds in the operating budget, as follows:

Office of Strategic Initiatives. Fuel Assistance FY202i

01 -02-02-024010-77050000-074-500587

Grants for Pub Assist & Relief $117,140.00

EXPLANATION

This contract is SOLE SOURCE because of the US Department of Energy's (US DOE) grant guidance
(10 CFR 440.15) giving Community Action Agencies preferred status for the Weatherization Assistance Program
due to their non-profit status, their role providing a range of services to clients eligible for WAP, and their
historical performance delivering the weatherization program.

OSI is responsible for administering New Hampshire's statewide Weatherization Assistance Program (WAP).
The objective of the program is to reduce energy consumption and the impact of energy costs in low-income
households. Priority is given to the elderly, disabled, households with children, and households with high-energy
usage. The funding in this contract will supplement WAP work.

The Low Income Home Energy Assistance Program (LlHEAP-US DHHS) funding in this contract will allow the
Community Action Agency (CAA) to effectively and efficiently increase the number of homes receiving heating
system improvements and/or full weatherization services in the program year which begins on January I, 2021.
OSI estimates that approximately eighteen (18) additional homes will be assisted in the CAA's service area as a
result of the supplemental funding.

In the event Federal Funds are no longer available. General Funds will not be requested to support this contract.

Rpspectfully-«ubmitted,

J^^ed Chicoine
Erector

G&C 12/16/2020

TDD Access: Relay NH 1-800-735-2964



FORM NUMBER P-37 (version 12/11/2019)

Notice: This agreement and all of its attachments shall become public upon submission to Governor and
Executive Council for ̂ ^proval. Any information that is private, confidential or proprietary must
be clearly identified to the agracy and agreed to in writing prior to signing the contract

AGREEMENT

The State of New Hampshire and the Contractor hereby mutually agree as follows:

GENERAL PROVISIONS

1. IDENTIFICATION.

1.1 State Agency Name
Office of Strategic Initiatives

1.2 State Agency Address
107 Pleasant Street, Johnson Hall
Concord, New Hampshire 03301

1.3 Contractor Name

Tri-County Community Action Program, Inc.
1.4 Contractor Address

60 Exchange Street, Berlin, NH 03570

1.5 Contractor Phone

Number

(603) 752-7001

1.6 Account Number

01 -02-02-024010-77050000-

500587 02BWP2I

1.7 Completion Date
Dccemb^ 31,2021

1.8 Price Limitation

$117,140.00

1.9 Contracting Officer for State Agency
Kirk Stone, Weathcrization Program Manager

1.10 State Agency Telephone Number
(603) 271-2155

1.11 Contractor S ignature

u  " 1

1.12 Name and Title of Contractor Signatory
Jeanne Robillard, Chief Executive Officer

1.13 State Agei&y ̂gnature 1.14 Name and Title of State Agency Signatory

sWerjl CiitCc\W OiV^cdoir
1.15yApproval by thcN.H. Department of Administration, Division of Personnel (ifapplicable) '

t By; Director, On:

1.16 Approval by the Attorney General (Form, Substance and Execution) (if applicable)!

1 1/^^l'202^
1.17 T^roval by the Governor and Executive Council (ifapplicable)

O&C Item number: G&C Meeting Date:
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2. SERVICES TO BE PERFORMED. The State of New

Hampshire, acting through the agency identified in block 1.1

("State"), engages contractor identified in block 1.3
("Contractor") to peifoim, and the Contractor shall perfonn, the
work or sale of goods, or both, identified and more particularly
described in the attached EXHIBIT B which is incorporated
herein by reference ("Services").

3. EFFECTIVE DATE/COMPLETION OF SERVICES.

3.1 Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the
contrary, and subject to the approval of the Governor and
Executive Council of the State of New Hampshire, if applicable,
this Agreement, and all obligation.s of the parties hereunder, shall
become effective on the date the Governor and Executive

Council approve this Agreement as indicated in block 1.17,
unless no such approval is required, in which case the Agreement
shall become effective on the date the Agreement is signed by
the State Agency as shown in block 1.13 ("Effective Date").
3.2 If the Contractor commences the Services prior to the
Effective Dale, all Services performed by the Contractor prior to
the Effective Date shall be performed at the sole risk of the
Contractor, and in the event that this Agreement does not become
effective, the State shall have no liability to the Contractor,
including without limitation, any obligation to pay the
Contractor for any costs incurred or Services performed.
Contractor must complete all Services by the Completion Date
specified in block 1.7.

4. CONDITIONAL NATURE OF AGREEMENT.

Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the
contrary, all obligations of the State hereimder, including,
without limitation, (he continuance of payments hereunder, are
contingent upon the availability and continued qjpropriation of
funds affect^ by any state or federal legislative or executive
action that reduces, eliminates or otherwise modifies the
appropriation or availability of funding for this Agreement and
the Scope for Services provided in EXHIBIT B, in whole or in
part In no event shall the State be liable for any payments
hereunder in excess of such available appropriated funds. In the
event of a reduction or termination of appropriated funds, the
State shall have the right to withhold payment until such funds
become available, if ever, and shall have the right to reduce or
terminate the Services under this Agreement immediately upon
giving the Contractor notice of such reduction or termination.
The State shall not be required to transfer funds from any other
account or source to the Account identified in block 1.6 m the

event funds in that Account are reduced or unavailable.

5. CONTRACT PRICE/PRICE LIMITATION/

PAYMENT.

5.1 The contract price, method ofpaym^t, and terms of payment
are identified and more particularly described in EXHIBIT C
wiuch is incorporated herein by reference.
5.2 The payment by the State of the contract price shall be the
only and the complete reimbursement to the Contractor for all
expenses, of whatever nature incurred by the Contractor in the
performance hereof, and shall be the only and the conqjiete

compensation to the Contractor for die Services. The State shall
have no liability to the Contractor other than the contract price.
5.3 The State reserves the right to olTset from any amounts
otherwise payable to the Contractor under this Agreement those
liquidated amounts required or permitted by NH. RSA 80:7
through RSA 80:7-c or any other provision of law.
5.4 Notwithstanding any provision in this Agreement to (he
contrary, and notwithstanding unexpected circumstances, in no'
event shall the total of ail payments authorized, or actually made
hereunder, exceed the Price Limitation set forth in block 1.8.

6. COMPLIANCE BY CONTRACTOR WITH LAWS

AND REGULATIONS/ EQUAL EMPLOYMENT
OPPORTUNITY.

6.1 In connection with the performance of the Services, (he
Contractor shall comply with all iqipUcable statutes, taws,
regulations, and orders of federal, state, county or municipal
authorities which impose any obligation or duty upon the
Contractor, including, but not limited to, civil rights and equal
employment opportunity laws. In addition, if this Agreement is
funded in any part by monies of the United States, the Contractor
shall comply with all federal executive orders, rules, regulations
and statutes, and with any rules, regulations and guidelines as the
State or the United States issue to implement these regulations.
The Contractor shall also comply with all applicable intellectual
property laws.
6.2 During the term of this Agreement, the Contractor shall not
discriminate against enq^loyecs or applicants for employment
because of race, color, religion, creed, age, sex, handicap, sexual
orientation, or national origin and will take affirmative action to
prevent such discrimination.
6.3. The Contractor agrees to permit the State or United States
access to any ofthe Contractor's books, records and accounts for
the purpose of ascertaining compliance with all rules, regulations
and orders, and (he covenants, terms and conditions of this
Agreement.

7. PERSONNEL.

7.1 The Contractor shall at its own expense provide all personnel
necessary to perform the Services. The Contractor warrants that
all personnel engaged in the Services shall be qualified to
perform the Services, and shall be properly licensed and
otherwise authorized to do so under all applicable laws.
7.2 Unless otherwise authorized in writing, during the term of
this Agreement, azxl for a period of six (6) months afier the
Completion Date in block 1.7, the Contractor shaU not hire, and
shall not permit any subcontractor or other person, firm or
corporation with whom it is engaged in a combined effort to
perform the Services to hire, any person who is a State employee
or official, who is materially involved in the procurement,
administration or performance of this Agreement. This
provision shall survive termination of this Agreement.
7.3 The Contracting Officer specified in block 1.9, or his or her
successor, shall be the State's representative. In the event of any
dispute concerning the interpretation of this Agreement, the
Contracting Officer's decision shall be final for the State.
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«. EVENT OF DEFAULT/REMEDIES.

8.1 Any one or more of the following acts or omissions of the
Contractor shall constitute an event of default hereunder ("Event
of Default"):
8.1.1 failure to perform the Services satisfactorily or on
schedule;
8.1.2 failure to submit any report required hereunder, and/or
8.1.3 failure to perform any other covenant, term or condition of
this Agreement.
8.2 Upon the occurrence of any Event of Default, the State may
take any one, or more, or all, of the following actions:
8.2.1 give the Contractor a written notice specifying the Event of
Default and requiring it to be remedied within, in the absence of
a greater or lesser specification of time, thirty (30) days fiom the
date of the notice; and if the Event of Default is not timely cured,
terminate this Agreement, effective two (2) days after giving the
Contractor notice of termination;
8.2.2 give the Contractor a written notice specifying the Event of
Defoult and suspending all payments to be made under this
Agreement and ordering that the portion of the controci price
which would odierwise accrue to the Contractor during the
period fixim the date of such notice until such time as the State
determines that the Contractor has cured the Event of Default

shall never be paid to the Contractor;
8.2.3 give the Contractor a written notice specifying the Event of
Default and set off against any other obligations (he State may
owe to the Contractor any damages the State suffers by reason of
any Event of Default; and/or
8.2.4 give the Contractor a written notice specifying the Event of
Default, treat the Agreement as breached, terminate the
Agreement and pursue any of its remedies at law or in equity, or
both.

8.3. No failure by the State to enforce any provisions hereof after
any Event of Default shall be deemed a waiver of its rights with
regard to that Event of Default, or any subsequent Event of
Default. No express failure to enforce any Event of Default shall
be deemed a waiver of the right of the State to enforce each and
all of the provisions hereof upon any further or other Event of
Default on the part of the Contractor.

9. TERl^ATION.
9.1 Notwithstanding paragraph 8, the State may, at its sole
discretion, terminate the Agreement for any reason, in vtdiole or
in part, by thirty (30) days written notice to the Contractor that
the State is exercising its option to terminate the Agreement
9.2 In the event of an early termination of this Agreement for
any reason other than the conqjletion of the Services, the
Contractor shall, at the State's discretion, deliver to the
Contracting Officer, not later than fifteen (15) days after the date
of termination, a report ('Termination Report") describing In
detail all Services performed, and the contract price earned, to
and including the date of terminatioa The form, subject matter,
content, and number of copies of the Termination Report shall
be identical to those ofany Final R^rt described in the attached
EXHIBIT B. In addition, at the State's discretion, the Contractor
shall, within 15 days of notice of early termination, develop and

submit to the State a Transition Plan for services under the

Agreement

10. DATA/ACCESS/CONFIDENTIALITY/

PRESERVATION.

10.1 As used in this Agreement, the word "data" shall mean all
informatioo and things developed or obtained during the
performance of, or acquired or developed by reason of, this
Agreement, including, but not limited to, ail studies, reports,
files, formulae, surveys, maps, charts, soimd recordings, video
recordings, pictorial reproductions, drawings, analyses, graphic
representations, computer programs, con^uter printouts, notes,
letters, memoranda, p^>ers, and documents, all whether
finished or unfinisb^.
10.2 All data and any property which has been received from
the State or purchased with funds provided for that purpose
under this Agreement, shall be the property of the State, and
shall be returned to the State upon demand or upon tennination
of this Agreement for any reasoa
10.3 Confidentiality of data shall be governed by N.H. RSA
chapter 91-A or other existing law. Disclosure of data requires
prior written approval of the State.

11. CONTRACTOR'S RELATION TO THE STATE. In the

performance of this Agreement the Contractor is in all respects
an independent contractor, and is neither an agent nor an
employee of the State. Neither the Contractor nor any of its
officers, employees, agents or members shall have authority to
bind the State or receive any benefits, workers' compensation or
other emoluments provided by the State to its employees.

12. ASSIGNMENT/DELEGATION/SUBCONTRACTS.

12.1 The Contractor shall not assign, or otherwise transfer any
interest in this Agreement without the prior written notice, ̂ ich
shall be provided to (he State at least fifteen (15) days prior to
the assignment, and a written consent of the State. For purposes
of this paragraph, a Change of Control shall constitute
assignment "Change of Control" means (a) merger,
consolidation, or a transaction or series of related transactions in
which a third party, together with its affiliates, becomes the
direct or indirect owner of fifty percent (50%) or more of the
voting shares or similar equity interests, or combined voting
power of the Contractor, or (b) the sale of all or substantially aU
of the assets of the Contractor.

12.2 None of the Services rHhII be subcontracted by the
Contractor without prior written notice and consent of the State.
The State is entitled to copies of all subcontracts and assignment
agreements and shall not be bound by any provisions contained
in a subcontract or an assignment agreement to which it is not a
party.

13. INDEMNIFICATION. Unless otherwise exempted by law,
the Contractor shall indemnify and hold harmless the State, its
officers and employees, fitnn and against any and all claims,
liabilities and costs for any personal injury or property damages,
patent or copyright infringement, or other claims asserted against
the State, its officers or en^toyees, which arise out of (or which
may be claimed to arise out of) the acts or omission of the
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Contractor, or subcontractors, including but not limited to tbe
negligence, reckless or intentional conduct Tbe State shall not
be liable for any costs incurred by the Contractor arising under
this paragraph 13. Notwithstanding the foregoing, nothing herein
contained shall be deemed to constitute a waiver of the sovereign
immunity of the State, which immunity is hereby reserved to the
State. This covenant in paragr^h 13 shall survive die
tennination of this Agreement

14. INSURANCE.

14.1 The Contractor shall, at its sole expense, obtain and
continuously maintain in force, and shall require any
subcontractor or assignee to obtain and maintain in force, the
following insurance:
14.1.1 commercial general liability insurance against all claims
of bodily injury, death or property damage, in amounts of not
less than $ 1,000,000 per occurrence and $2,000,000 aggregate
or excess; and
14.1.2 special cause of loss coverage form covering all property
subject to subparagraph 10.2 herein, in an amount not less than
80% of tbe whole replacement value of the propttty.
14.2 Tbe policies de^'bed in subparagraph 14.1 herein shall be
on policy forms and endorsmnents ̂ proved for use in the State
of New Hampshire by the N.H. Depmtment of Insurance, and
issued by insurers licensed in the State of New Hampshire.
14.3 The Contractor shall furnish to the Contracting Officer
identified in block 1.9, or his or her successor, a catificate(s) of
insurance for all insurance required under this Agreement
Contractor shall also furnish to the Contracting Officer identified
in block 1.9, or his or her successor, certificatefs) of insurance
for all renewal(s) of insurance required under this Agreement ix>
later than ten (10) days prior to the expiration date of each
insurance policy. The ceTtificate(s) of insurance and any
renewals thereof shall be attached and arc incorporated herein by
reference.

15. WORKERS' COMPENSATION.

15.1 By signing this agreement, the Contractor agrees, certifies
and warrants that the Contractor is in conqiUance with or mempt
fiom, fljc requirements ofN.H. RSA chapter 281-A ("Workers'
Compensation ").
15.2 To (he extent tbe Contractor is subject to the requirements
of N.H. RSA chiqjter 281-A, Contractor shall maintain, and
require any subcontractor or assignee to secure and maintain,
payment of Workers' Compensation in connection with
activities which the person proposes to undertake pursuant to this
Agreement. The Contractor shall furnish the Contracting Officer
identified in block 1.9, or hJs or her successor, proof of Workers'
Compensation in the manner described in Nii. RSA chapter
281-A and any applicable rencwalfs) thereof which shall be
attached and are incorporated herein by reference. Tbe State
shall not be responsible for payment of any Woricers'
Compensation premiums or for any other claim or benefit for
Contractor, or any subcontractor or en^loyce of Contractor,
which might arise under applicable State of New Hanqishire
Workers' Compensation laws in connection with the
performance of the Services under this Agreement

16. NOTICE. Any ttotice by a party hereto to. the other party
shall be deemed to have been duly delivered or given at the time
of mailing by certified mail, postage prepaid, in a United States
Post Office addressed to the parties at the addresses given in
blocks 1.2 and 1.4, herein.

17. AMENDMENT. This Agreement maybe amended, waived
or discharged only by an instrument in writing signed by (he
parties hereto and only after ^roval of such amendment,
waiver or discharge by (he Governor and Executive Council of
the State of New Hampshire unless no such approval is required
under (hp circumstances pursuant to State law, rule or policy.

18. CHOICE OF LAW AND FORUM. This Agreement shall
be govemed, interpreted and construed in accordance with the
laws of the State of New Hampshire, and is binding upon and
inures to the benefit of the parties and their respective successors
and assigns. The wording used in this Agreement is the wording
chosen by the parties to express their mutual intent, and no rule
of construction shall be applied against or in favor of any party.
Any actions arising out of this Agreement shall be brought and
maintained in New Hampshire Superior Court which shall have
exclusive jurisdiction thereofi

19. CONFLICTING TERMS. In the event of a conflict

between the ternrs of this P-37 form (as modified in EXHIBIT
A) and/or attachments Bird amerxlment thereof, the terms of the
P-37 (as modified in EXHIBIT A) shall control.

20. THIRD PARTIES. The parties hereto do not intend to
benefit any third parties and this Agreement shall not be
construed to confer any such benefit

21. HEADINGS. The headings throughout the Agreement are
for reference purposes only, and the words contained therein
shall in no way be held to explain, modify, amplify or aid in the
interpretation, construction or meaning of the provisions of this
Agreement

22. SPECIAL PROVISIONS. Addition^ or modifying
provisions set forth in the attached EXHIBIT A are incorporated
herein by reference.

23. SEVERABILITY. In the event any ofthe provisions ofthis
Agreement are held by a court of competent jurisdiction to be
contrary to any state or federal law, the remaining provisions of
this Agreement will remain in full force and effect

24. ENTIRE AGREEMENT. This Agreement, wdiich may be
executed in a number of counterparts, each of which shall be
deemed an original, constitutes the entire agreement bikI
understanding between the parties, and supersedes all prior
agreements and understandings with respect to the subject matter
hereof.
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NEW HAMPSHIRE OFFICE OF STRATEGIC INITIATIVES

EXHIBIT A

SPECIAL PROVISIONS

1. 2 CFR 200, as amended, (Unifonn Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit
Requirements for Federal Awards), 10 CFR 440 dated February 1, 2002 (Weatherization Assistance
Program), the New Hampshire Weatherization Assistance Program (NHWAP) State Plan, NHWAP
Policies and Procedures Manual (P&PM), and NHWAP Field Guide are all considered part of this
contract by inclusion and shall be legally binding and enforceable documents under this contract.
The Office of Strategic Initiatives (OSl) reserves the right to use any legal remedy at its disposal
including, but not limited to, disallowance of costs, withholding of funds, suspension of agency
personnel, disbarment of agency personnel, disbarment of agencies and/or subcontractors from
present or future contracts, and such other legal remedies as determined to be appropriate by the New
Hampshire Department of Justice in the enforcement of rules and regulations pertaining to the
Weatherization Program.

2. An audit shall be made at the end of the Contractor's fiscal year in accordance with 2 CFR 200,
Subpart F - Audit Requirements. This audit report shall include a schedule of revenues and
expenditures by contract or grant number of all expenditures during the Contractor's fiscal year. The
Contractor shall utilize a competitive bidding process to choose a qualified financial auditor at least
every four years.

The audit report shall include a schedule of the prior year's questioned costs along with a response
regarding the current status of the prior year's questioned costs. Copies of all management letters
written as a result of the audit along with the audit rqxrrt shall be forwarded to OSI within one month
of the time of receipt by the Contractor accompanied by an action, if applicable, for each finding or
questioned cost.

3. The following paragraph shall be added to paragraph 9 of the general provisions:

"9.3 All negotiated contracts (except those of $5,000 or less) awarded by OSl to the Contractor shall
allow OSI, DOE, Health and Human Services, the Con^troUcr General of the United States, or any
duly authorized representatives access to any books, documents, papers, and records of the
Subgrantee or their subcontractors, which are directly pertinent to this contract for the purpose of
making audits, examinations, excerpts, and transcriptions."

4. The costs charged under this contract be determined as allowable under the cost principles
detailed in 2 CFR 200 Subpart E - Cost Principals.

5. Program and fmancial records pertaining to this contract shall be retained by OSI and the Contractor
for 3 (three) years from the date of subinission of the final ejq>cnditure report or, for awards that are
renewed quarterly or annually, from the date of the submission of the quarterly or annual financial
report, as stated in 2 CFR 200.333 - Retention Requirements for Records.

6. CLGSE OUT OF CONTRACT. All final required rqwrts and reimburscnient requests shall
be submitted to the State within forty-five (45) days of the completion date (Agreement
Block 1.7).

j  Exhibit A

\£ Page 1 of 2
Initials Date ////fl/<9(

Award «j-2002NHLIEA, CFDA #93.5^8



1. The following paragraphs shall be added to the general provisions:

"25. RESTRICTION ON ADDITIONAL FUNDING. It is understood and agreed between the parties
that no portion of the "Grant" funds may be used for the purpose of obtaining additional federal funds
under any other law of the United States, except if authorized under that law."

"26. ASSURANCES/CERTIFICATIONS. The following are attached and signed: Certification
Regarding Drug-Free Worlq)lacc Requirements; Certification Regarding Lobbying; Certification
Regarding Debarment, Suspension and Other Responsibility Matters; Certification Regarding the
Americans With Disabilities Act Compliance; Certification Regarding Environmental Tobacco
Smoke; Assurance of Compliance Nondiscrimination in Federally Assisted Programs; and
Certification Regarding the Federal Funding Accountability and Transparency Compliance."

"27. COPELAND ANTI-K.ICKBACK ACT. All contracts and subgrants in excess of $2,000.00 for
construction or repair shall include a provision for compliance whh Copeland "Anti-Kickback" Act
(18 use 874) as supplementedinDcpartment of Labor Regulations (29 CFR, Part 3). This Act
provides that each contractor, subcontract or subgrantee shall be prohibited fhnn inducing, by any
means, any person employed in the construction, completion or repair of public work, to give up any
part of the compensation to which he is otherwise entitled. The subgrantee should report all
suspected violations to OSI."

'78. PROCUREMENT. Subgrantee shall comply with all provisions of 2 CFR 200 Subpart D-Post
Federal Award Requirements - Procurement Standards with special emphasis on financial
procurement (2 CFR 200 Subpart F - Audit Requirements) and property management (2 CFR 200
Subpart D - Post Federal Award Requirements - Property Standards.)"

Exhibit A
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NEW HAMPSHIRE OFFICE OF STRATEGIC INITIATIVES

EXHIBIT B

SCOPE OF SERVICES

1. Tri-County Commumty Action Program, Inc., hereinafter "the Contractor," agrees to utilize the
Building Weathcrization Program (BWP) funds, which are the subject of this contract and which have
their origin in the federal Low Income Home Energy Assistance Program (LIHEAP), to provide eligible
clients with weathcrization services, including heating system repair and replacement services, which
meet the requirements and standards for LIHEAP weathcrization work as modified and approved in the
FY21 New Hampshire LIHEAP State Plan. In addition, all work completed using BWP funds will be in
accordance with the fiscal requirements of regulations set forth in 2 CFR 200 as amended, and will be
guided and implemented as directed by the'Officc of Strategic Initiatives (OSI) in this contract and,
fiom time to time, in BWP Subgrantec Notices or other communications. The Contractor agrees to
revise BWP practices and jrrocedures to incorporate instructions from OSI.

Contractor agrees to incorporate changes to the NH Building Weatherization Program as prescribed by
OSI to improve program delivery. Contractor further agrees to perform all weathcrization services in a
manner that will successfully interact with utility administered energy efficiency programs for low
income households in order to provide the best collaborative services for those households.

2. This BWP contract period, to be known as "BWP21," will commence on January 1, 2021. and will have
a completion date of December 31,2021, subject to the approval of the Governor and Executive
Council.

3. BWP funds, which are the subject of this contract, shall not be expended for health and safety purposes.
However, in projects where BWP money is used without any federal Weathcrization Assistance
Program (WAP) money involved - in oier words, where there is no money for the installation of health
and safety measures - then that BWP project may include the cost of incidental repair measures (see the
NH Policies and Procedures Manual) if, by so doing, the cumulative SIR for the entire project is not
brought down to below 1.

4. No portion of the BWP funding in this contract is set aside for training and technical assistance
(T&TA). However, Contractor may choose to expend some or all of the designated administrative
funds on T&TA activities. Appropriate back-up and justification for the use of those funds will be
required by OSI prior to reimbursement.

5. During the contract period, the Contractor agrees to complete weatherization services on the number of
units that is the result of dividing the Contractor's PY21 BWP allocation by $6,500. OSI understands
that the actual number of BWP completions will likely differ from that number due to the

■  unpredictability of heating system costs, etc., but OSI expects to see monthly BWP payment requests
from the Contractor in order to monitor BWP spending progress. Unit completions will be done to the
standards and expectations presented in LIHEAP weatherization guidance, this contract, and the NH
WAP Policies and Procedures Manual, 2019 edition, section on BWP management.

a. The number of dwelling units and the amount of funds to be expended shall conform to the
provisions of this contract. OSI reserves the right to review progress under this contract at any
time and may utilize information fixim such reviews to alter dwelling unit goals and fimds to be
expended.

Exhibit B
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b. All funds provided to the Contractor under this agreement must be expended by December 31,
2021.

6. Effective April 1,2015, all work performed under the federal Weatherization Assistance Program
(WAP) in New Hampshire must meet the minimum specifications defined in the US Department of
Energy's Quality Work Plan (QWP) and the associat^ Standard Work Specifications (SWS). While
BWP work is to be managed mostly under DOE rules, and is therefore not subject to all of the same
specifications and requirements as WAP work, Contractor will manage BWP work in a manner which
provides clients with weatherization outcomes similar to those achieved under WAP guidance whenever
possible. The occasions when WAP rules must apply to BWP work are set out in this document
(Exhibit B).

7. Client eligibility for BWP-funded weatherization woric should generally be the same as for WAP-
funded weatherization work: client income is to be no greater than 200% of the federal poverty
guidelines (FPG). However, because the LIHEAP eligibility income ceiling is higher than the WAP
ceiling (LIHEAP funds may be expended on clients with incomes at or below 60% of New Hampshire's
median income, which, in 2020, is an amount higher than 200% FPG), Contractor may utilize BWP
funds with clients who meet the LIHEAP income guidelines. If the project is to be in any part funded
using WAP funds, however, then the client's income must be no greater than 200% FPG.

8. BWP money may be "leveraged" (used in combination) with any other weatherization funding source.
If WAP/DOE money is used in a dwelling weatherization project, that project must be completed to
WAP standards and be approved as "WAP complete, ready for reimbursement" by a certified Quality
Control Inspector.

9. BWP money may be used for cither full dwelling weatherization upgrades or for heating system
improvements alone. Contractor is obligated under this contract to e}q)end at least 50% of the
contracted BWP amount on heating system repairs and/or replacements.

a. The PY21 BWP package of forms (see item 12b, below) for reporting BWP expenditures will
include columns to make clear whenever BWP money was used:

i. for restoration of heating services (repair or replacement of inoperable heating
equipment),

ii. for prevention of heating system service loss (repair or replacement to avoid
approaching failure), or

iii. for supplementing or fully supporting a whole house weatherization project, with space
to report when heating system work paid for with BWP funds is part of that whole
house upgrade.

10. The maximum amount of BWP money to be spent on any one dwelling project is $8,000. If the BWP
budget for any one project must exce^ that amount, a waiver must be received from OSI. OSI will
review all waiver requests promptly and will provide approval when possible. However, applying the
expenditure guidelines in the FY21 NH LIHEAP State Plan, OSI will not approve total BWP
expenditures on any one dwelling weatherization project that exceed $12,000. This total is cumulative,
summing the BWP expenditures made during all visits to that dwelling.

11. BWP production includes:

a. Weatherization upgrades which are commensurate with a work plan developed from a thorough
dwelling energy audit and a TREAT model prepared by a qualified (BPI-cotificd) Building
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Analyst or Energy Auditor or Quality Control Inspector who has developed the woric plan (the
energy conservation measures - ECMs - to be installed) using cither the "benefit/cost ratio"
(B/C) methodology as defined by the utilities* Home Energy Assistance (HEA) program or the
"savings to investment ratio" (SIR) methodology as defined by the US DOE for use in WAP.
The SIR methodology must be used when the project will include at least one ECM which is to
be paid for with WAP funds.

b. Final inspections which determine:
i. whether the project's woric plan was appropriate and complete, taking into account the

methodology - B/C or SIR - used by the energy auditor to select the ECMs to be
installed, the pre-weatbeiization condition of the building, etc.

ii. whether that appropriate woric plan was fully and effectively implemented in the
dwelling, providing the client with a comprehensive energy-saving weatherization
outcome.

c. In projects where BWP money is used alongside WAP money in the same dwelling, that project
must ̂  completed using the WAP rules and standards, including the installation of only those
measures which individually achieve an SIR equal to or greater than I, the use of a certified
Quality Control Inspector to perform the final inspection, etc.

d. In projects where no WAP money is involved, the final BWP inspection may be performed by a
person holding a current BPI certification in at least one of the following areas: Building
Analyst, Energy Auditor, or Quality Control Inspector.

e. Because BWP money is not WAP money, BWP money may be used in weatherization upgrades
to dwellings which have received WAP-funded or BWP-funded upgrades since September of
1994 by presenting a waiver request to OSI. However:

i. re-weatherization should be done sparingly, remembering that there are thousands of
potential clients who have received no weatherization services at all;

ii. care should be taken, as always, to avoid even the appearance of favoritism;
iii. WAP money cannot be part of the leveraging done on re-weathcrlzcd dwellings which

received the benefit of at least some WAP dollars in the first round of weatherization

work done;

iv. all BWP-funded second visits to previously weatherizcd dwellings, whether that
weatherization work was done with WAP or BWP or HEA funds, must be preceded by
receipt of an approved waiver from OSI.

12. The tracking of BWP jobs will include;
a. Contractor preparation and maintenance of a client file on every BWP job. Contractor will

utilize a filing protocol which allows recovery of the file when checking future jobs against
previous weatherization work performed at that address, etc., even if no WAP money was used.
Future CAP agency WAP Directors need to be able to check on weatherization work completed
in dwellings, even when WAP money was not involved.

b. The use of a separate BWP reimbursement request package/spreadsheet supplied by OSI. All
jobs with any BWP money invested must be submitted for reimbursement on the BWP set of
forms. If a particular job also includes the use of any WAP money, then that job will have to be
submitted for WAP reimbursement as well, using the WAP reimbursement request forms
already in use. Therefore, if a single weatherization job uses funds from two different
weatherization funding sources managed by OSI, that job must be submitted to OSI twice in
order for it to be reimbursed for the correct amount from each source.

13. This agreement consists of the following documents: a completed P-37 form, and Exhibits A, B, C, D,
E, F, G, H, I, and J. All exhibits are incorporated herein by reference as if fully set forth herein.
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NEW HAMPSHIRE OFFICE OF STRATEGIC INITIATIVES

EXHIBIT C

PAYMENT TERMS

In consideration of the satisfactory performance of the services set forth in Exhibit B, the State agrees to
pay the Contractor, Tri-County Community Action Program, Inc., up to the total sum of:

$117,140 (which hereinafter is referred to as the "Contracted Amount"), of which
$  5,857 is the maximum to be spent on BWP related administrative costs,
$111,283 (the balance) to be spent on wcatherization activities (Program Activity).

Drawdowns from the total contracted amount will be paid to the Contractor only after written
documentation of cash need is submitted to OSI. Disbursement of the contracted amount shall be made
in accordance with the procedures established by the State and 2 CFR 200.305(b) on an advance basis;
limited to minimum amounts needed; and be timed to be in accordance with the actual, immediate cash
requirements of the Contractor in carrying out the piupose of the program. The Contractor must make
timely payments to (sub)contractor8 in accordance with the contract provisions. Contractor shall submit a
payment request to OSI for each month of the contract period using forms to be provided by OSI for
that purpose. Payment requests from Contractor shall be received at OSI no later than the 15* day of each
month or the first business day following the 15* day.

Administrative costs are provided in order to support a specified number of unit completions at minimal
standards. Administrative fimds may be pro-rated by OSI if production unit completions do not meet
expected production goals.

OSI will also be allowed, as a function of its administrative oversight, to modify contracted budget
amounts as necessary to ensure the efficient and effective operation of the contract as long as these
modified expenditures do not exceed the total "Contracted Amount" as specified above.

Ail obligations of the State, including the continuance of any payments, are contingent upon the
availability and continued appropriation of funds for the services to be provided.

Exhibit C
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NEW HAMPSHIRE OFFICE OF STRATEGIC INITIATIVES

STANDARD EXHIBIT D

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
Sections 5151-5160 of the Dmg-Frcc Workplace Act of 1988 (Pub. L. 100-690, Title V, Subtitle D; 41 U.S.C.
701 et seq.), and further agrees to have the Contractor's representative, as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of
the General Provisions execute the following Certification:

CERTIFICATION REGARDING DRUG-FREE WORKPLACE REQUIREMENTS

ALTERNATIVE I - FOR GRANTEES OTHER THAN INDIVIDUALS

US DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

US DEPARTMENT OF ENERGY

US DEPARTMENT OF HOMELAND SECURITY

This certification is required by the regulations implementing Sections 5151 -5160 of the Drug-Free Workplace
Act of 1988 (Pub. L. 100-690, Title V, Subtitle D; 41 U.S.C. 701 ct seq.). The January 31,1989, regulations
were amended and published as Part n of the May 25, 1990. Federal Register fnages 21681-21691), and require
certification by grantees (and by inference, sub-grantees and subcontractors), prior to award, that they will
maintain a drug-fiec workplace. Section 3017.630(c) of the regulation provides that a grantee (and by inference,
sub-grantees and sub-contractors) that is a State may elect to make one certification to the Department in each
federal fiscal year in lieu of certificates for each grant during the federal fiscal year covered by the certification.
The certificate set out below is a material representation of fact upon which reliance is placed when the agency
awards the grant. False certification or violation of the certification shall be grounds for suspension of payments,
suspension or termination of grants, or government wide suspension or debarment. Contractors using this form
should send it to:

Director, New Hampshire Office of Strategic Initiatives
107 Pleasant Street, Johnson Hall, Concord, NH 03301

(A) The grantee certifies that it will or will continue to provide a drug-free workplace by:

(a) Publishing a statement notifying employees that the unlawfiU manufacture, distribution,
dispensing, possession or use of a controlled substance is prohibited in the grantee's workplace
and specifying the actions that will be taken against employees for violation of such prohibition;

(b) Establishing an ongoing drug-free awareness program to inform employees about—

(1) The dangers of drug abuse in the workplace;
(2) The grantee's policy of maintaining a drug-fiee workplace;
(3) Any available drug counseling, rehabilitation, and employee assistance programs; and
(4) The penalties that may be imposed upon employees for drug abuse violations occurring

in the workplace;

(c) Making it a requirement that each employee to be engaged in the pcrfonnance of the grant be
given a copy of the statement required by paragraph (a);

(d) Notifying the employee in the statement required by paragraph (a) that, as a condition of
employment under the grant, the employee will—

(1) Abide by the terms of the statement; and
(2) Notify the employer in writing of his or her conviction for a violation of a criminal drug

statute occurring in the workplace no later than five calendar days after such conviction;

Initials
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CERTIFICATION REGARDING DRUG-FREE WORKPLACE REQUIREMENTS

ALTERNATIVE 1 - FOR GRANTEES OTHER THAN INDIVIDUALS, cont'd

US DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

US DEPARTMENT OF ENERGY

US DEPARTMENT OF HOMELAND SECURITY

(c) Notiiying the agency in writing, within ten calendar days after receiving notice under
subparagraph (d)(2) fiom an employee or otherwise receiving actual notice of such conviction.
Employers of convicted employees must provide notice, including position title, to every grant
officer on whose grant activity the convicted employee was working, unless the Federal agency
has designated a central point for the receipt of such notices. Notice shall include the
identification number(s) of each affected grant;

(f) Taking one of the following actions, within 30 calendar days of receiving notice under
subparagraph (d)(2), with respect to any employee who is so convicted:

(1) Talcing appropriate personnel action against such an cn^loyce, up to and including
termination, consistent with the requirements of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, as
amended; or

(2) Requiring such employee to participate satisfactorily in a drug abuse assistance or
rehabilitation program approved for such purposes by a Federal, State, or local health,
law enforcement, or other appropriate agency;

(g) Making a good faith effort to continue to maintain a drug-free worlq>lace through implementation
of paragraphs (a), (b), (c), (d), (c), and (f).

(B) The grantee may insert in the space provided below the site(s) for the performance of woric done in
connection with the specific grant.

Place of Performance (street address, city, county, State, zip code) (list each location)

30 Exchange Street
Berlin, NH 03570

Check n if there are workplaces on file that arc not identified here.

Tri-County Community Action Program, Inc. January 1,2021, to December 31,2021

Contractor Name Period Covered by this Certification

Jeanne RobiJlard, Chief Executive Officer

Name and Title of Authorized Contractor Representative

It
Dateomractor Representative Signature
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NEW HAMPSHIRE OFFICE OF STRATEGIC INITIATIVES

STANDARD EXHIBIT E

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
Section 319 of Public Law 101-121, Government wide Guidance for New Restrictions on Lobbying, and 31
U.S.C. 1352, and further agrees to have the Contractor's representative, as identified in Sections Ml and 1.12 of
the General Provisions execute the following Certification:

CERTIFICATION REGARDING LOBBYING

US DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

US DEPARTMENT OF ENERGY

US DEPARTMEfTT OF HOMELAND SECURITY

Programs (indicate applicable program covered):
Community Services Block Grant

Low-Income Home Energy Assistance Program
HRRP Program
BWP Program

Contract Period January 1,2021, to December 31,2021

The undersigned certifies, to the best of his or her knowledge and belief, that:

(1) No Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid by or on behalf of the undersigned, to any
person for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a Member of
Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in connection
with the awarding of any Federal contract, continuation, renewal, amendment, or modification of any
Federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement (and by specific mention sub-grantee or sub
contractor).

(2) If any funds other than Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid to any person for
influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a Member of Congress, an
officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in connection with this
Federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement (and by specific mention sub-grantee or sub
contractor), the undersigned shall complete and submit Standard Forni LLL, "Disclosure Form to Report
Lobbying, in accordance with its instructions, attached and identified as Standard Exhibit E-1.

(3) The undersigned shall require that the language of this certification be included in the award document
for sub-awards at all tiers (including subcontracts, sub-grants, and contracts under grants, loans, and
cooperative agreements) and that all sub-recipients shall certify and disclose accordingly.

This certification is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed when this transaction was
made or entered into. Submission of this certification is a prerequisite for making or entering into this transaction
imposed by Section 1352, Title 31, U.S. Code. Any person who fails to file the required certification shall be
subject to a civil penalty of not leks than $10,000 and not more than $100,000 for each such failure.

Jeanne Robillard, Chief Executive Officer

ContraStof^cprcscntativc S\gnaturc

Tri-County Community Action Program, Inc.

Contractor's Representative Title

ull^l
Contractor Name Date
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NEW HAMPSHIRE OFFICE OF STRATEGIC INITIATIVES

STANDARD EXHIBIT F

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
Executive Office of the President, Executive Order 12529 and 45 CFR Part 76 regarding Debanncnt, Suspension,
and Other Responsibility Matters, and further agrees to have the Contractor's representative, as identified in
Sections l.ll and 1.12 ofthe General Provisions execute the following Certification:

CERTIFICATION REGARDING DEBARMENT, SUSPENSION, AND OTHER
RESPONSIBILITY MATTERS - PRIMARV COVERED TRANSACTIONS

Instructions for Certification

(1) By signing and submitting this proposal (contract), the prospective primary participant is providing the
certification set out below.

(2) The inability of a person to provide the certification required below will not necessarily result in denial of
participation in this covered transaction. If necessary, the prospective participant shall submit an explanation

of why it cannot provide the certification. The certification or explanation will be considered in connection
with the NH Office of Strategic Initiatives (OSI) determination whether to enter into this transaction.
However, failure of the prospective primary participant to furnish a certification or an explanation shall
disqualify such person from participation in this transaction.

(3) The certification in this clause is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed when OSI
determined to enter into this transaction. If it is later determined that the prospective primary participant

knowingly rendered an erroneous certification, in addition to other roncdics available to the Federal
Government, OSI may terminate this transaction for cause or default.

(4) The prospective primary participant shall provide immediate written notice to the OSI agency to whom this
proposal (contract) is submitted if at any time the prospective primary participant learns that its certification
was erroneous when submitted or has become erroneous by reason of changed circumstances.

(5) The terms "covered transaction," "debarred," "suspended," "ineligible," "lower tier covered transaction,"
"participant," "person," "primary covered transaction," "principal," "proposal," and "voluntarily excluded,"
as used in this clause, have the meanings set out in the Definitions and Coverage sections of the rules
implementing Executive Order 12549: 45 CFR Part 76.

(6) The prospective primary participant agrees by submitting this proposal (contract) that, should the proposed
covered transaction be entered into, it shall not knowingly enter into any lower tier covered transaction with a
person who is debarred, suspended, declared ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from participation in this
covered transaction, unless authorized by OSI.

(7) The prospective primary participant further agrees by submitting this proposal that it will include the clause
titled "Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension, Ineligibility and Voluntary Exclusion - Lower Tier
Covered Transactions," provided by OSI, without modification, in all lower tier covered transactions and in
all solicitations for lower tier covered transactions.

(8) A participant in a covered transaction may rely upon a certification of a prospective participant in a lower tier
covered transaction that it is not debarred, suspended, ineligible, or involuntarily excluded from the covered
transaction, unless it knows that the certification is erroneous. A participant may decide the method and
frequency by which it determines the eligibility of its principals. Each participant may, but is not required to,
check the Non-procurement List (of excluded parties).

(9) Nothing contained in the foregoing shall be construed to require establishment of a system of records in order
to render in good faith the certification required by this clause. The knowledge and information of a
participant is not required to exceed that which is normally possessed by a prudent person in the ordinary
course of business dealings.

(10) Except for transactions authorized under pamgraph 6 of these instructions, if a participant in a covered
transaction knowingly ciUers into a lower tier covered transaction with a person who is suspended, debarred,
ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from participation in this transaction, in addition to other remedies
available to the Federal government, OSI may terminate this transaction for cause or default.

Exhibits D thru H
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CERTIFICATION REGARDING DEBARMENT, SUSPENSION, AND OTHER
RESPONSIBILITY MATTERS - PRIMARY COVERED TRANSACTIONS, cont'd

Certification Regarding Debarmentf Suspension, and Other

Responsibiiity Matters - Primary Covered Transactions

(11) The prospective primary participant certifies to the best of its knowledge and belief, that it and its
principals:

(a) are not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared ineligible, or voluntarily
excluded from covered transactions by any Federal department or agency;

(b) have not within a three-year period preceding this proposal (contract) been convicted of or had a
civil judgment rendered against them for commission of fraud or a criminal offense in connection
with obtaining, attempting to obtain, or performing a public (Federal, State or local) transaction
or a contract under a public transaction; violation of Federal or State antitrust statutes or
commission of embezzlement, theft, forgery, bribery, falsification or destruction of records,
making false statements, or receiving stolen property;

(c) are not presently indicted for otherwise criminally or civilly charged by a governmental entity
(Federal, State or local) with commission of any of the offenses enumerated in paragraph (1) (b)
of this certification; and

(d) have not within a three-year period preceding this application/proposal had one or more public
transactions (Federal, State or local) terminated for cause or default.

(12) Where the prospective primary participant is unable to certify to any of the statements in this
certification, such prospective participant shall attach an explanation to this proposal (contract).

Certijication Regarding Debarment, Suspension, Ineligibiiity and
Voluntary Exclusion - Lower Tier Covered Transactions

(To Be Supplied to Lower Tier Participants)

By signing and submitting this lower tier proposal (contract), the prospective lower tier participant, as defined in
45 CFR Part 76, certifies to the best of its knowledge and belief t^t it and its principals:

(a) are not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared ineligible, or voluntarily
excluded from participation in this transaction by any federal department or agency.

(b) where the prospective lower tier participant is unable to certify to any of the above, such
prospective participant shall attach an explanation to this proposal (contract).

(

The prospective lower tier participant further agrees by submitting this proposal (contract) that it will include this
clause entitled "Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension, Ineligibiiity, and Voluntary Exclusion - Lower
Tier Covered Transactions," without modification in all lower tier covered transactions and in all solicitations for
lower tier coveredthaasa^ons. N

N. ^ Jeanne Robillard, Chief Executive Officer
Contraci«i^eprcsentative Signature Contractor's Representative Title

Tri-County Community Action Program, Inc. ^ // jl^j
Contractor Name Date
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NEW HAMPSHIRE OFFICE OF STRATEGIC INITIATIVES

STANDARD EXHIBIT G

CERTIFICATION REGARDING THE

AMERICANS WITH DISABILITIES ACT COMPLIANCE

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees by signature of the Contractor's
representative as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute the following
certification:

By signing and submitting this proposal (contract) the Contractor agrees to make reasonable efibrts to
comply with all applicable provisions of the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990.

Jeanne Robillard, Chief Executive Officer

ContractOT^epresentativc Signature Contractor's Representative Title

Tri-County Community Action Program, Inc. ////;? /AO
DContractor Name ate
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NEW HAMPSHIRE OFHCE OF STRATEGIC INITIATIVES

STANDARD EXHIBIT H

CERTIFICATION

PabUc Law 103-227, Part C
ENVIRONMENTAL TOBACCO SMOKE

Public Law 103227, Part C Environmental Tobacco Smoke, also known as the Pro Children Act of 1994, requires

that smoking not be permitted in any portion of any indoor facility routinely owned or leased or contracted for by
an entity and used routinely or regularly for provision of health, day care, education, or library services to
children under the age of 1S, if the services are tunded by Federal programs either directly or through State or
local governments, by Federal grant, contract, loan, or loan guarantee.

The law does not apply to children's services provided in private residences, facilities funded solely by Medicare
or Medicaid funds, and portions of facilities used for inpatient drug or alcohol treatment.

Failure to comply with the provisions of the law may result in the imposition of a civil monetary penalty of up to
$1,000 per day and/or the imposition of an administrative compliance order on the responsible entity.

By signing and submitting this application the applicant/grantee certifies that it will comply with the
requirements of the Act.

The applicant/grantee further agrees that it will require the language of this certification be included in any
subawards which contain provisions for the children's services and that all subgrantees shall certify accordingly.

Jeanne Robillard, Chief Executive OfBcer

Contractdc3-cpresentative Signature Contractor's Representative Title

Tri-County Community Action Program, Inc.

DateContractor Name
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OOEF 1600J (06-94)
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NEW HAMPSHIRE OFFICE OF STRATEGIC INITIATIVES

STANDARD EXHIBIT I

U.S. DEPARTMENT OF ENERGY

ASSURANCE OF COMPLIANCE NONDISCRIMINATION IN FEDERALLY ASSISTED
PROGRAMS

0MB Burden Disclosure Statement

Public reporting burden for this collection of information is estimated to average 15 minutes per response,
including the time for reviewing instructions, searching existing data sources, gathering and maintaining the data
needed, and completing and reviewing the collection of information. Send comments regarding this burden
estimate or any other aspect of this collection of information, including suggestions for reducing this burden, to
Office of Information Resources Management Policy, Plans, and Oversight, Records Management Division, HR-
422 -GTN, PaperworkReduction Project (1910-0400), U.S. Department of Energy, 1000 independence Avenue,
S.W., Washington, DC 20585; and to the Office of Management and Budget (0MB), Pj^)erwoi1c Reduction
Project (1910-0400), Washington, DC 20503.

Tri-Countv Commiinitv Action Program. Inc. (Hereinafter called the "Applicant") HEREBY AGREES to
comply with Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 (Pub. L. 88-352), Section 16 of the Federal Energy
Administration Act of 1974 (Pub. L. 93-275), Section 401 of the Energy Reorganization Act of 1974 (Pub. L. 93-
438), Title IX of the Education Amendments of 1972, as amended, (Pub. L. 92-318, Pub. L. 93-568, and Pub. L.
94-4g2), Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973 (Pub. L. 93-112), the Age Discrimination Act of 1975
(Pub. L. 94-135), Title VIU of the Civil Rights Act ofl968 (Pub. L. 90-284), the Department of Energy
Organization Act of 1977 (Pub. L. 95-91), the Energy Conservation and Production Act of 1976, as amended,
(Pub. L. 94-385) and Title 10, Code of Federal Regulations, Part 1040. In accordance with the above laws and
regulations issued pursuant thereto, the Applicant agrees to assure that no person in the United States shall, on
the ground of race, color, national origin, sex, age, or disability, be excluded fiT>m participation in, be denied the
benefits of, or be otherwise subjected to discrimination under any program or activity in which the Applicant
receives Federal assistance fiom the Department of Energy.

Applicability and Period of Obligation
In the case of any service, financial aid, covered employment, equipment, property, or structure provided, leased,
or improved with Federal assistance extended to the Applicant by the Department of Energy, this assurance
obligates the Applicant for the period during which Federal assistance is extended. In the case of any transfer of
such service, financial aid, equipment, property, or stnicture, this assurance obligates the transferee for the period
during which Federal assistance is extended. If any personal property is so provided, this assurance obligates the
Applicant for the period during which it retains ownership or possession of the property. In all other cases, this
assurance obligates the Applicant for the period during which the Federal assistance is extended to the Applicant
by the Department of Energy.

Employment Practices
Where a primary objective of the Federal assistance is to provide employment or where the Applicant's
employment practices affect the delivery of services in programs or activities resulting from Federal assistance
extended by the Department, the Applicant agrees not to discriminate on the ground of race, color, national
origin, sex, age, or disability, in its employment practices. Such employment practices may include, but arc not
limited to, recruitment, advertising, hi^g, layoff or termination, promotion, demotion, transfer, rates of pay,
training and participation in upward mobility programs; or other forms of compensation and use of facilities.

Subredpient Assurance

The Applicant shall require any individual, organization, or other entity with whom it subcontracts, subgrants, or
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subleases for the purpose of providing any service, tinancial aid, equipment, property, or structure to comply
with laws and regulations cited above. To this end, the subrecipient shall be required to sign a written assurance
form; however, the obligation of both recipient and subrecipient to ensure compliance is not relieved by the
collection or submission of written assurance forms.

Data Collection and Access to Records

The >^plicant agrees to compile and maintain information pertaining to programs or activities developed as a
result of the Applicant's receipt of Federal assistance from the Department of Energy. Such information shall
include, but is not limited to the following: (1) the manner in which services are or will be provided and related
data necessary for determining whether any persons are or will be denied such services on the basis of prohibited
discrimination; (2) the population eligible to be served by race, color, national origin, sex, age and disability; (3)
data regarding covered employment including use or planned use of bilingual public contact employees serving
beneficiaries of the program where necessary to permit effective participation by beneficiaries unable to speak or
understand English; (4) the location of existing or proposed facilities connected with the program and related
information adequate for determining whether the location has or will have the effect of unnecessarily denying
access to any person on the basis of prohibited discrimination; (5) the present or proposed membership by race,
color, national origin, sex, age and disability in any planning or advisory body which is an integral part of the
program; and (6) any additional written data determined by the Department of Energy to be relevant to the
obligation to assure compliance by recipients with laws oiled in the first paragraph of this assurance.

The Applicant agrees to submit requested data to the Department of Energy regarding programs and activities
developed by the Applicant from the use of Federal assistance funds extended by the Department of Energy.
Facilities of the Applicant (including the physical plants, buildings, or other structures) and all records, books,
accounts, and other sources of information pertinent to the Applicant's compliance with the civil rights laws
shall be made available for inspection during nonnal business hours on request of an officer or employee of the
Dq}artment of Energy specifically authorized to make such inspections. Instractions in this regard will be
provided by the Director, Office of CrvH Rights, U.S. Department of Energy.

This assurance is given in consideration of and for the purpose of obtaining any and all Federal grants, loans,
contracts (excluding procurement contracts), property, discounts or other Fedwal assistance extended after the
date hereof, to the Applicants by the Department of ̂ergy, including installment payments on account after
such data of application for Federal assistance which are approved before such date. The i^plicant recognizes
and agrees that such Federal assistance will be extended in reliance upon the representations and agreements
made in this assurance, and that the United States shall have the right to seek judicial enforcement of this
assurance. This assurance is binding on the Applicant, the successors, transferees, and assignees, as well as the
person(s) whose signatures ̂ pear below and who are authorized to sign this assurance on behalf of the
Applicant.

Applicant Certification

The Applicant certifies that it has complied, or that, within 90 days of the date of the grant, it will comply with
all applicable requirements of 10 C.F.R. § 1040.5 (a copy will be furnished to the Applicant upon written
request to DOE).

JeanneRobillard, CEO Signature V Date H [
Tri-County Community Action Program, Inc.
60 Exchange Street, Berlin, NH 03570
(603) 752-7001

Exhibit I
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NEW HAMPSHIRE OFFICE OF STRATEGIC INmATIVES

STANDARD EXHIBIT J

CERTIFICATION REGARDING THE FEDERAL FUNDING ACCOUNTABILITY

AND TRANSPARENCY ACT (FFATA) COMPLIANCE

The Federal Funding Accountability and Transparency Act (FFATA) requires prime awardees
of individual Federal grants equal to or greater than S25»0CX) and awarded on or after October 1, 2010.
to report lOn data related to executive compensation and associated first-tier sub-grants of $25,000 or
more. If the initial award is below $25,000 but subsequent grant modifications resuh in a total award
equal to or over $25,000, the award is subject to the FFATA reporting requirements, as of the date of the
award.

in accordance with 2 CFR Part 170 {Reporting Subaward and Executive Condensation Information), the
New Hampshire Office of Strategic Initiatives must rq)ort the following information for any subaward or
contract award subject to the FFATA reporting requirements:

1) Name of entity
2) Amount of award
3) Funding agency
4) NAICS code for contracts / CFDA program number for grants
5) Program source
6) Award title descriptive of the purpose of the funding action
7) Location of the entity
8) Principle place of performance
9) Unique identifier of the entity (DUNS #)
10) Total compensation and names of the top five executives if:

a. More than 80% of annual gross revenues are from the Federal government, and those
revenues are greater than $25M annually and

b. Compensation information is not already available through reporting to the SEC.

Prime grant recipients must submit FFATA required data by the end of the month, plus 30 days, in which
the award or award amendment is made.

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of

The Federal Funding Accountability and Transparency Act, Public Law 109-282 and Public Law 110-

252, and 2 CFR Part 170 {Reporting Subaward and Executive Compensation Information), and further
agrees to have the Contractor's representative, as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General
Provisions execute the following Certification:

The below named Contractor agrees to provide needed information as outlined above to the New
Hampshire Office of Strategic Initiatives and to comply with all applicable provisions of the Federal
Financial Acpquntability a^d Transparency Act.

Jeanne Robillard, Chief Executive Officer

(Contractor^«j^rescntati ve Signature) (Authorized Contractor Representative Name & Title)

Tri-County Community Action Program, Inc. ll j 191^0
(Contractor Name) (Dale)

Exhibit J

Page 1 of2
Initials^-d' \ Date jjl

Award #G-2002NHLIEA, CFDA #93.5b8



NEW HAMPSHIRE OFFICE OF STRATEGIC INITIATIVES

STANDARD EXHtBIT J

FORMA

As the Contractor identified in Scction 1.3 of the General Provisions, I certify that the responses to the
below listed questions are true and accurate.

1. The DUNS number for your entity is:

2. In your business or organization's preceding completed fiscal year, did your business or organization
receive(l) 80 percent or more ofyour annual gross revenue in U.S. federal contracts, subcontracts, loans,
grants, sub-grants, and/or cooperative agreements; and (2) $25,000,000 or more in annual gross revenues
from U.S. federal contracts, subcontracts, loans, grants, subgrants, and/or cooperative agreements?

_^N0 -YES
If the answer to #2 above is NO, stop here

If the answer to #2 above is YES, please answer the following:

3. Does the public have access to information about the compensation of the executives in your business
or organization through periodic reports filed under section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act
of 1934 (15 U.S.C.78m(a), 78o(d)) or s^on 6104 of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986?

^NO , YES

If the answer to #3 above is YES, stop here

If the answer to #3 above is NO, please answer the following:

4. The names and compensation of the five most highly compensated officers in your business or
organization are as follows:

Name:, Amount

Name: Amount: -

Name: Amount:

Name: Amount:

Name: -- ... Amount:

S  Exhibit J
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State of New Hampshire

Department of State

CERTIFICATE

I, William M. Gartincr, Secrciaiy of Suic oflhe SlUe of New Hampshire, do hereby certify Ihffl TRI-COUNTY COMMUNITV
ACTION PROGRAM. INC. (TRI-COUNTY CAP) is a New Hampshire Nonprofit Corpondion reglitcred to transw business in
New Hampshire on May 18. 1965.1 further certify thai ail fees and documents required by ibc Secretary' of State's office have
been received and is In good standing as far as this office is coTKemed.

Business ID: 6302O

Ceitincate Number: 0004969574

%

£

o
"0

09A
N

IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF.

1 hereto set my hand and cause to be affixed

the Seal of the State of New Hampshire,

this 31st day of July A.D. 2020.

William M. Gardner

Sccretao' of State



OocuSign Envelope ID: 06402A41-D/V2D-4C93-8FC1-007E47CF0C2A

CERTIFICATb: OFAUTHORITV

1. Sandy Alon^o . Board Chair/Vicc I'rcsiclent/Clerk/Sccrciary of
(Njimc)

1 ri-Couniv CQninmnitv Aciit>n Piomatn. Inc. (Mereiiialier ihc "Coiporaiion"). a New I lainpsliirc cor))oration.
hereby ccnify ihai:

(1)1 am ihe duly ciccied and aeiing Board Cliaii A'icc Prcsidcni/Clerk/Sccrciary ofihc Con'oraiion; (2) I mainuiin
and have cuslody and am familiar wiih ihc minuic books ofihc Corjjoraiion; (3) I am duly nuiliorizcd lo issue
ccnillcalcs wiih respect lo the eontcms of such books; (4) ihai the Board of Directors of the Cor|>oraiion have
authorized, on _9/29/2020_ . such authority to be in force and effect nnlil December 31. 2021.

(Cdiiiraci icmiiii.-iiioii dale)

The pcfson(s) holdiny ihc below listed posiiion(s) are authorized lo'cxceuic and deliver on behalf of the
Corj^oraiion any contract or other instalment for the sale of products and services:

Jeanne Rohillard Chief Bxeeiiiive Officer
it'osiiion)

Kandall Piloiic Chief r-immcinl Officer
(Nome) (Posiiion)

(5) fhcnicciing of the Board of Directors was held in accordance with New Manibshiro
(Stoic of incorpitrulioio

law and the by-laws of Ihc Coiporation: and (6) said authorization has not been modified, amended or
fescindcd and continues in full force and effect as of the date hereof.

(6) I hereby understand that the Stale of New Hampshire will rely on this certificate as evidence that the
person(s) listed above currently occupy the position(s} iiidicated and that they have full authorily to bind
the coiporation. To the c.xtcnt that there are any limits on the authority of any listed individual to bind
the coiporation on contracts with the Stale of New Hampshire, all suclt limitulions are expressly stated
herein.

I HAVE HEREUNTO set my hand as the Board Chair/Vice Presidcnt/Clerk/Seeretury of (he coiporaiion

this 12 day of Novcmher .2020
-DocuSigned

.^a^TPFCiFUfun';

Board Cliair/Vicc Presidenl/Cicrk/Sccrctary



/XCORD CERTIFICATE Of LIABILITY INSURANCE
OATEOttuDcymnr)

0a/2S/2020

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RK3KTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THS
CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFiRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POUaES
BELOW. THIS CERT1HCATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE l^UING mSURER(S). AUTHORIZED
REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICAtE HOLDER.
IMPORTANT. If th« liolder M an AODfTIONAL INSURED, tha policyllta) must have ADDITIONAL INSURED provlslona or ba andorMd.
If SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, tubjact to the tarira and conditions of.tha policy, csrtain pcilclts may rtquirt an andorasmsnt Attatament on
thla cartlflcata doaa not conftr rights to tbt csrtiflcats hoi^ In llau of such tndorsament(s).'

PKOoucen

FIAI/Cress Ihsunnco

HOOEIniSt^

iManchester NH 03101

Karen Shaughnessy

(603)(»9-32ia (003)645-«31

lo^ss: '^*haughnessyOcroi»agancy.com
atsuRcnm AFFOfKXMO covEftAoe NAIC*

Tokio'MarineHoUlnos.'Inc
WSUREO

TfLCounty Community AcOon Program. Inc

30 Exchange Strset

Benin nh 03570

B. Granite State Health Cart and Human Services Setf-

MSunenc:

NSuneno:

MSUnERC:

MSURERP:

COVERAGES CERTinCATE NUMBER: 20;21AIIUnM REVISION NUMBER:

THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POUCIES OF INSURANCE USTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POUCY PERIOO
INDICATED. NOTWTHSTAMOCNG ANY REQUIREMENT. TERM OR CC^TION OF ANY CONTRACT Oft OT^ DOCUMENT WTH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS
CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN. THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED K^IN IS StlBJECT TO AU.THE TERMS
EXCLUSIONS AND'CONDltlONS OF SUCH POUCIES. LIMITS SHOVNH MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY. PAID'CLAIMS.

nsir
L-m 'TYPeOFWSUKANCe

f 'a I

POUCY NUMBER
sueycFF

(MMIOaiYYYri
HUeVEXP
iMMoomrm 1  UMTT8

' A

X1 COMMEMCIALOe»eiUL UABajTY

« |X| OCCUR

PHPK2003516 07101/2020 d7/0i/2021

1

EACH OCCURRENCE , 1.000,000

1  1 CUaAS-MAC OAmoeroHi^iLu
PREWrSES rE« oeomnM)

, 100,000

1

I
1

I

1

1

, 5.000

1 PER90MU. a AOV INJURY , 1.000.000

OEIrt AOQAEGATE LIMIT APPUES PEW:

policvOj^ [ZIloc
OTHER:

OENERAL AGOREOATE , 3.000.000

PROOUCTS • COMAOP AOO , ,3.000.000

s

A

MJ1rOHOaH.e UABUTY

PHPK2003S23 07/01/2020 07/01/2021

.COiUltNEO SetOLE UMT
rEAMMI

t 1.000.000

X AHYAUTO

OMMEO
AUTOS ONLY
HWEO
AUTOS ONLY

—

SCHEDULED
AUTOS.
HOH<nANEO 1
AUTOS ONLY

aCORY iMXJRY (Pw p«i^ 1

aOOLY NJURY (P«r aoobM) t

PROPERTY 6AiiA6£
rPw McMmn " ■%

L Undertnsured motortst 1 1.000,000

A X

UMSReLLAUAB 1

EXCESS UAe \
X OCCUR

CLAIMSWAOE PHUBM3002 ' 07/01/2020 07/01/2021

, 2.000,000

AOOREOATE 2,000.000

OEO 1 XI RETErmOH t 10.000 1 t

B

iWORKSRS COHPeNSATIOM
AND EHHDYCfir UASaJTY

AHV PBOeiUETOIWmTTgW/eXECUnVE rm
oFFicaweMegi Exciuoee?(Wwaewymw) '
M UM dMMCrfbA liBldBf
OESCAtPTON Of 0PEAAT1CW3 DMoiv

MIA HCHS20200P00241 (M.) NH 02/pi/2020 d2/6l/M21

^ STATUTE €R
E.UEACHACCIOCMT , 1.000.000

E.L DISEASE • EA EMPLOYEE 1.000.000

E.U DISEASE • POUCY UUT. , 1,000,000

A.
Professional.UabiBty

PHPK2003516 07/01/2020 07/01/2021

Each.Occurrertce

Aggregate
51.000.000
53.000.000

CERTIFICATE HOLDER CANCELLATION

NH Office of StTBtsgic Initistivet

SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE OeSCRIBEO POUCIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE
THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF. NOTICE WIU BE OCUVERED IN '
ACCORDANCE Wtiil THE POLICY PROVISiONS.

107 Pleasant Street

Johnson Hal

Concord
1

AUTHORESO REPRESENTATT^'

NH 03301

AC0R0 26 (2016A)3|
O1fte8-2018ACORO CORPORATION. AH rights reserved.

The ACORD harne and logo are registered marks of ACORD
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To thd Board of Directors of
Tri-County Community Action Program, Inc. arxJ Affiliate t£HTino> h-rjjc a«xi.umam.<
Berlin, New Hampshire *omTOi • NOR-nidiNiAy

IHAKR • (^)N(:r»Hri

STKMIIAM

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

Report on the FInanciat Statements
We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Tri-County Community
Action Program, inc. and Affiliate (New Hampshire nonprofit organizations), which comprise the
consolidated statements of financial position as of June 30, 2019 arid 2018, the related
consolidated statements of cash flows and functional expenses for the years then ended, the
related consolidated statement of activities for the year ervfed June 30, 2019 and the related
notes to ttie consolidated financial statements.

Management's Responsfbfitt/ far the Financtal Statemefrts
Management Is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these consolidated
financial statements In accordance with accountjng principles generally accepted in the United
States of America; this includes the design, implementation, and malntenarwe of tnlemal control
relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of consolidated financial statements that are
free from material mlsstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

AudJtors' Responstttility
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated firtandai statements t>a&6d on
our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generaQy accepted in
the United States of America arKi the standards applicable to financial audits contained in
Government Auditing Standards. Issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those
standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements are free from material mlsstatement

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and
disclosures in the consoHdated financtal statements. The procedures selected depend on the
auditors' judgement, Including the assessment of the risks of material mlsstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk
assessments, the auditor considers intemal control relorent to the entity's preparation and fair
presentation of the consolidated financial statements In order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the entity's Intemal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit
also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as
evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basts for our audit opinion.



Opinion
In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present falrfy, In all
material respects, the consolidated financial position of Tri-County Community Action Program,
Inc. and AffWale as of June 30. 2019 and 2018, and its consolidated cash flows for the years
then ended, and the changes In Its net assets for the year ended June 30. 2019. In accordance
with accounting phndples generally accepted in the United Stales of America.

Report on Summarized Comparative Information
We have previously audited Tri-Counly Community Action Program, Inc. and Affilrate's 2018
corsoildated financial statements, and we expressed an unmodified audit opinion on those
consolidated financial statements In our report dated October 19. 2018. In our opinion, the
summarized comparative information presented herein as of and for the year ended June 30.
2018, is consistent. In all material respects, with the audited consolidated financlat statements
from which It has been derived.

Otfier Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on tne consolidated financial
statements as a whole. The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards, as
required by TlUe 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations (CFR) Part 200. Uniform Administrative
Requirements, Cost PrindplBS, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards, is presented for
purposes of additional analysis and Is not a required part of the consolidated financial
statements. Such Information is the responsibility of management and was derived from and
relates directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the consolidated
financial statements. The Infonmatlon has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied In
the audit of the consolidated financial statements and certain additional procedures, including
comparing and reconciling such Information directly to the undertying accounting and other
records used to prepare the consolidated financial statements or to the consolidated financial
statements themselves, end other additional procedures In accordance with audHir^g standards
generally accepted In the United Slates of America. In our opinion, the Information is fairly
stated, In all material respects. In relation to the consolidated financial statements as a whole.

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards
In accordance with Government Auditing Standwds, we have also Issued our report dated
OctobBf 21. 2019, on our consideration of Tri-County Community Action Program. Inc.'s Internal
control over financial reporting and on our tests of Its compliance with certain provisions of laws,
regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report Is to
describe the scope of our testing of Intemet control over financial reporting and compliance and
the results of that testing, and not to provicfe an opinion on the effectiveness of Tri-County
Community Action Program, Inc.'s Internal control over financial reporting or on compliance.
That report is an integral part of an audit performed In accordance with Governmerrt Auditing
Standards In considering Tri-County Community Action Program, Inc.'s internal control over
flnandai reporting and compliance.

October 21. 2019
North Conway, New Hampshire
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION

JUNE 30. 2019 AND 2018

ASSglfi

CURRENT ASSETS

Cash and cash equivalents
Restrfcted cash

Accounts receivable

Property held for sale
Pledges receivable
^entories

Prepaid expenses

2P19

S  1,400750
583,963

1,274,083
47,000

231,161

85,886
34.037

2018

5  1,329,038
380,602

1,156.657

212,207

67,669

25.640

Total current assets 3.656.660 3,192,013

PROPERTY

Prc^erty and equ^ment
Less accumulated depreciation

12,066,152
(5,178.535)

12,612,689
(5.203.324)

Property, net 6,907,617 7,609,365

OTNER ASSETS

Restricted cash -4is:sAci _  325.669

TOTAL ASSETS 5 10.683:453

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

CURRENT UABILITIES

Demand note payable
Current portion of long term debt
Current portion of capital lease obligations
Accoimts payable
Accrued compensated absences
Accrued salaries

Accrued expenses

Refundable advances

Other liabflHies

S

148,449

4,870
221,571

204.079
210,052
69.624
107.157

598,195

S  516,022
142,733
4,445

237.276
203,121

187,508

131.688
191,069
387.168

Total currem liabilities ■i.OQl'TSO
LONG TERM DEBT

Long term debt net of current portion
Ce|:^al lease obligations, net of current portion

5,227,835
3,355

5.373.037
6.226

Total liBbitltics 6,905,087 7,383.393

NET ASSETS
Without donor restrictiona
With done/ restrictions

3,399,192
678.254

2,026,057
817,791

Total net assets
(

107?,448 _3.743.84a

TOTAL UABILfTlES AND NET ASSETS % 10,083,433 $ 11.127.241

Soe Notes to Consolidated Financial Statomenta

a



W-ctoKrt f. >M) iKTC

CONSOUOATEO STATEMENT OP ACrnVITlBS

FOR THE YEAR ENOB) JUNE 90, 2018
vnrH PR>QR YEAR SUMMARCEO CQWPARATlVg INFORMATION

REVENUES AND OTHER SUPPORT
QcpMsnd contncU

Program funding
Utntypiogrvna
IrrAM contrttniUona

Contribuliani

Fundralshg
Rental Income

InterDft Incxkmo
(Lea*) gain on disposal of property
LoM en wriia down of property heU for sale
Other revecM

Totsl revenues and oltwr supcort

NET ASSETS RELEASED mOU RESTRICTIONS

Total revenuoa othor support, and
net eassta rdeaaed leitrictions

RiNCnONAL EXPENSES

Program Serrteefi;
Agsncy Fund
Haid &an
Guardianship
Trartspoitation

Voiuntfier

Wertcfbrce Otvetopment

Atoohol and Other Drugs
Cerrol County Dents!

Support Center
Homeleas

Energy and Comrrtiailty Daveioprrvant
Elder
HouslnQ Services

ToW program aervlces

Bivpoitino AetivUiee:
Oerwral and admlnlstrallvo

Fwvdralsing

Total a4>portlna actMUaa

Totei tuncQonal expanses

CHANCE IN NET A86ET6

NET ASSETS. BEGMHING OF YEAR

NET ASSETS, END OF YEAR

MtthCHil Donor

Rtftristifim

WithDenor

Reatrfctlorur

2019

Total

2018

Total

S  14.074,008
1.187,506
1,287,103
477.167
230,986
30,903

625.048

643

{32.802)

(2SSA62)
1M,SB4

S  401,106 9  14.47S.114
1,167.509
1.287.103
477.167

230,666
39403

6254M0
643

(92.892)
(286,492)
IS84564

$ 14.308.086
1459.037

1.079.961

351.187

31».229
59436

679.112
348

48.487

tjv.Dan

17.606.745 401.106 16.210451 18463,317

r>fO#4,T .

ic wrvTKX f139.537) 18410451 16,263,317

9S0639
2,45U98
787.241

616.086
118.408
394.263

747.474

901,850

714,066

7.788,560
1.462.619
172.652

9S0.839

2,451.266
787,241

616,089

116,408
354.263

747,474
391.850

714.068

7,788,560

1,482.613
172.852

922.701
2.481416

760.009
879.729

122.941

384.252

444,581
642.637
276.172

577.783

7.480443

1,142.810
176.611

164535.151 164 35.161 18,302.993

1.032.207

9.896
-

1,032.207
9.895

1,102.448

8.023

1.042.102 1.042,102 1.110.471

17.677.253 17.877453 17.413.484

473.135 (139.537) 333498 849.853

•j.743,8<6

41 K/b.i't-l s. xr«x4tii

Sae Netoa toConaalldatetl FlnarKlal Statemants

4



CONSOLroATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 3C. 2018 AND 2018

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATMG ACTlVmES
ChanQd in n«l assets
Adjustmenb lo reconcile change In nel assets to
net cash provided by operaHnB sdlvlUes:

Depredation
Lon (gain) on disposal of property
Loss on write down of property held for sale

(Increase) decrcaes In essets:
Accounts roceivabiB

Pledges receivable
Inwento/ies

Prepetd expenses
Restricted cash

Incieaae (decrease) In liabilhles:
Accounte payable
Accrued conYponsated obsencoa

'  Accrued aaiacies

Accrued expanse*
Refundable advancss

OdwIlabUKlM

NET CASH PROVtDEO BY OPERATING ACHVITIES

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Procaede from disposal of property
Pvirchsses of property and equiprnent

NET CASH (USED IN) PROVtOED BY INVESTING ACTrVITIES

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTrVPTES
Net repayment on demand nola payable
Rapaymem of long-term debt
Repejment of capllal lease obUgattons

NET CASH USED IN FINANCING ACTIVIT1EB

NET INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, BEQINNING OF YEAR

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS. END OF YEAR

SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURE OF CASK FLOW

INFORMATION:

Oath paid dielng the year for.

Intorecl

SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURE OF NONCASH INVESTING

AND FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Property donated

2019 zm

S  333,598 S  646,853

447.689 4(»,483
32392 (48,487)

255.492

(117,426) 170.337
(18354) (6.403)
1383 (21.028)
(9.397) 19,705

(266,134} 235,922

(15,705) (281,171)
958 (39/424)

23.444 (9.374)
(42,384) 24,261

8,088 (8.479)
211327 (258.143)

et'awt ,:).OSVKf

(S1G.022)
(140,ass)

(4.446)

(660.654)

71,712

• 3 7.42S-.T5D.

278.972

(141.3351

,137,57?

(90,412)
(311.963)

623.338

605.7 OC

t  1,329,038

j  tta;nc i

le.ffun

See Notes to Concolldated Financial Statements
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CONSOUOA.TEO STATEMENT OF FUNCriONA

iUtrfFfrrt»(>4
General 6

iTistf; Total Adtnlidetredve

Qjrect Esp«in»««

Payroll S  199.241 5  1^365 s 5,462.305 6  696.457 S

Payroll t«e» tnd benefits 49.2S9 3  . 1.413J2BO 163.274

AMtstanca t» cflcnts 22.359 6.766,314

Coravmabte wppfef 3.409 846.305 11.438

Sp«ee cosb aid rentals 7.626 1  . 523.719 66 566

Deprecudon experee 169.653 \a 447569 3.157

In-kind expended 477.167

Consufunts end conbecion 20AOO 1 2Z2J16 16.(^

UOCUm 166.207 til 378,636 0.708

Tmveland meeiinpe 11.024 Vf 297507 20.789

OtTter (firect program costs 2.S3S tw 157.696 9,225

FiscAl and BdminUrattve 16.617 '271 103.147 94.740

BuMng end gtounde miinlensnee 93.986 VM 179J46 30

InlarKi espense 117.685 152.966 953

V^hicii eipenae 2.747 199.966

insurance 38.671 716 S9.016 .s;jf7
Maintenance e( e^apnanl end rental 562 ^51 63.909 no*}-
Fhed leea 8.265 13.817

Touf Dffeci fxpenses 950639 2.4^3 16.635.161 1.032.207

Indirect Expense*
rri^^ffeidiaci costa

«  '
t

Total Dfrecf 4 frtdkeci expeneea k  • * « •) :  1 »  4

Fundf»Ti inn

9.699

9.695

JfilSl

6.Ci69.7«2

1.S7BA24

6.7aa9l4

657.741

990237

490026

477,167

230547

304.344

318.396

176.0(6

(67.687

170376

153.916

I80S65

119.788

96.SSC
14.239

17,677,293

» rr * !_i t'J-

Sm Netn ts Con«oD4at«d FkiAfici
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COMSOLKMTEO STATEMENT Of FUVCTIDNAl. E)

FOR THE YSAR ENDED JUNE 10. gflll

General 0

Direct expeneaa

Aotocyfuod Heed star
Totol PuuiralvVe^ Trttl

t^yreii S  ffl7S5 S  1.250.8,7 S 5J14.049 1  670.692 S i  8.084.641
Peyrcfl uxea artd berveftts 23^19 339.0 . 1,260,319 1B4A14 1.424.733
Ajtifttnee lo cfienti 74.171 S.S36.546 8038046
Consumebte uippOee 1.723 240.032 949,850 11,219 961066
Space ecets irtd rcAUle 21.013 164.4 570.542 72.308 050.927
OepfvctMon ecpenn 324.023 1.6-« 483.403 403.483
IrvkinOar^ended 12.500 200.0! , 351.188 351,188
Comirtante end e«nlnetore 15.015 20,9: 31S042 15.662 33I.S04
uaKss iaS45l 32.3^2 326.899 3089 330040
Travel and rreecnos 1,093 50.2.5 2T8.T87 9.47D 2S8037
Otie direct preQrarn cocts 44.933 9.764 192.849 28.234 229.106
Flscai arN ■dnHctrad<ra 243 28,3^50 94.549 106059 200.008
BuUiog and (roundi rvwEntanance &2.S22 62.6^ 198.381 18D 190,861
iniami aepense 127.777 31 . 183.401 1,241 184.642
Vehicle aqwrse 4.282 1 104.961 104,961
ineutwce 05.654 154.315 5.O0S 159.400
MawiterwocB of eevipment and rcntai <ii. 127.333 14010
Fixed teei 1

.

4^3J2 4 3i;i

rolaf Urtet Cxptnttt 1.014.074 2.481.9-,, 18.395.306 1.102,440 6.023 17005.837

atdirect EepaneM
tidirectcccis :«WD6 248 01 1,102440 (I.I02.448J

CtpttaSxed Ei penaee
l.ast capoillzaflan oi attau .. rfrA'iJ

-

Totif DErecr SAtdfreclexpeneec i i  -:M.wrtL„ 1 I. 1L .i-=ii 8

See Netoe lo Cpneolidaled Flnsnctal I
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30. 2D1fl AND 2018

N0TE1. ORGANIZATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Oraanizatlon and Principles of Consolidation

The consolidated financial staternents Include the accounts of Tri-County
Community Action Program. Inc. and Its affiliate. Cornerstone Housing North, Inc.
The two organizations are consolidated because Tri-County Community Action
Program, Inc. controls 100% of the voting pov/er of Cornerstone Housing North, Inc.
AH significant intercompany Items and transactions have been eliminated from the
basic financial statements. Tri-County Community Action Program, Inc. (the
Organization) is a New Hampshire non-profit corporation that operates a wide
variety of community service programs which are funded primarily through grants or
contracts from various federal, state, and local agencies. Comar8tor>e Housing
North, Inc. (a New Hampshire nonprofit corporation) was incorporated under the
laws of the State of New Hampshire for the acquisition, construction and operation
of community-based housing for the elderly.

Nature of actlvHlas

The Organization's programs consist of the following:

Aaencv

j Tri-County CAP Administration provides central program management
support and oversight to the Organization's many Individual programs.
This Includes planning and budget development, bookkeeping and
accounting, payroll and HR services, legal and audit services. IT support,
management support, financial support and central policy development.

Trl-County CAP Administration Is the liaison between Tri-County
Community Action Program, Inc., Board of Directors and Its programs,
ensuring that programs comply with agreements made by the Board to
funding sources and vendors.

Other responsibilities include the management and allocation of funding
received through a Community Services Block Grant, as well as
management of the Organization's real estate property.

Head Stort

Head Start provides comprehensive services to low-Income children and
their families. Head Start supports children's growth and development in a
positive learning environment through a variety of activities as well as
providing sen^lces. which Include in addrtion to early leamlng, health and
family well-being. All children receive health and devetopment screenings,
nutritious meals, oral health and mental health support. Parents and
families are supported In achieving their own goals, such as housing
stability, continued education, and financial stability.



Programs support and strengthen parent-child relationships as their child's
primary educator. Head Start staff work as partners with parents to Identify
and provide Indrvidualized activities that support their chifd's growth and
development.

Trl County Community Action Head Start serves 217 children in Carroll.
Coos & Grafton counties In 9 locations wfth 13 center-based classrooms

and 1 home-based option.

QuBrdianshlD

The Organization's Guardianship program provides advocacy and guardian
services for the vulnerable population of New Hampshire residents
(developmentally disabled, chronically mentally ill, traumatic brain Injury,
and the elderly sufferirrg from Alzheimer's, dementia, atKl multiple medical
issues) who rioed a guardian and who have no family member or friend
willing, able, or suitable to serve in that capacity. This program serves 414
individuals. Addttionai services include, conservatorship, representative
payee-ship, federal fiduciary services, benefit management services and
private probate accounting services.

Transportation

The Organization's transit program provides various transportation
services: public bus routes, door-to-door service by request, long distance
medical travel to medical facilities outside our regular service area, and
special trips for the elderly to go shopping and enjoy other activities that
are located outside the regular service area. The Organization's fleet of 17
wheelchair accessible vehicles offers transportation options to the elderly
and disabled, as wail as to the general public.

Volunteer

The Coos County Retired & Senior Volunteers Program (RSVP) maintains
a minimum group of 394 volunteers, ages 55 and older, of which 287
actively served during the last reporting period. These volunteers share
their skills, life experiences, and time with over 60 local non-profit and
public agencies throughout Coos County that depend on volunteer
assistance to meet the needs of their constituents. Our volunteers donate
over 46,764 hours yearly.

Workforce Development

The Organization is assisting transitional and displaced workers as they
prepare for new jobs, and also assisting currentiy-employed workers to
gain the skills required for better jobs.



The Organization is helping to Implement New Hampshire's Unified State
Plan for Workforce Developmerit, In line with the federal Workforce
Investment Act, Workforce training programs, with training facilities in
three towns, provide temporary assistance for needy famDIes (TANF)
recipients with 20-30 hours per week of training in the areas of employment
skills, computer skills, and business experience, end also place
participating TANF recipients in communrty-based work experience sites.

Alcohol & Other Drugs (AOD)

Services provided through the AOD program included assisting the
alcoholic/addicted person on the road to recovery, through three phases:
Crisis Intervention, Sobriety Maintenance, and Assessment arKl Referral to
appropriate treatment facilities.

The Residential Treatment Programs (Friendship House) provided
chemically dependent individuals with the fundamental tools of recovery.
Including educational classes, group and Individual counseling, work and
recreational therapy, and attendance at In-house and community-based
alcoholics anonymous and narcotics anonymous meetings. The AOD .
program also offered assistance with its Impaired driver programs.

Effective October 1. 2017, the Organization Is no longer responsible for the
Alcohol & Other Drugs (AOD) program. The grants for the program were
transferred to North Country Health Consortium (NCHC), as they took over the
program. The Friendship House was sold to Affordable Housing Education and
Development (AHEAD).

Carroll County Dentst

The Tamworth Dental Center (the Center) otters high quality oral health
care to children with NH Medlcaid coverage. The Organization also serves
uninsured and underinsured children and adults using a sliding fee scale
that offers Income-based discounts for care. The Center accepts most
common dental Insurances for those who have commercial dental
insurance coverage. A school-based project of the Dental Center, School
Smiles, offers oral health education, screening, treatment and referrals for
treatment to over 1,000 children In 9 schools in the vicinity of the Center.

Support Center

The Organization's Support Center at Burch House provides direct service
and shelter to victims and survivors of domestic and sexual violence and
stalking in Northern Grafton County. Support Center sendees are
accessible 24 hours a day, 365 days a year. They Include: crisis
intervention; supportive counseling; court, hospital and policy advocacy
and accompaniment; emergency shelter; support groups; community
education and outreach; violence prevention programs for students;
information, referrals and assistance accessing other community
resources.
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Homeless

Homefess services include an outreach intervention and prevention project
thet strives to prevent individuals and families from be<»mlng homeless,
and assists ttie already homeless In securing safie, affordable housing. The
Organization provides temporary shelter space for homeless clients.

The Organization also provides some housing rehabilitation services to
help preserve older housing stock.

Energy Assistance and Outreach

Energy Assistance Services provide fuel and electric assistance through
direct pay to vendors or a discount on the client's bill. Ck^mmunlty Contact
sites allow local participants access to energy assistance programs and
other emergency services. The offices provide information to the
Organization's clients about other programs ofTered, as well as other
programs available through other organizations in the community.

Low-Income Weatherfzat/on

The NH weatherization program helps low-Income famines, elderly,
disabled, small children and Individuals lower their home energy costs;
Increase their health, safety, arxl comfort; and Improve the quality of living
while Improving housing stock in communities around the state utlllzinQ
energy cost saving, health and safety and cartion lowering measures. The
NH Weatherization Assistance Program also creates local NH jobs.

Eider

The Organization's elder progrBm provides senior meals in 15 community
dining sites, home delivered meals (Meats on Wheels) to the fralt and
homebound elderly, and senior nutrition education and related
programming. The Coos County ServlceUnk Aging & Disability Resource
Center assists with person-centered counseling, Medicare counseling.
Medlcaid assistance, long-term care counseling services, and caregiver
supports.

Housing Sendees

Cornerstone Housing North, Inc. is subject to a Project Rental Assistance
Contract (PRAC) with the United States Department of Housing and Urban
Devetopment (HUD), and a significant portion of their rental Income is
received from HUD.

The Organization includes a 12-unil apartment complex In Berlin, New
Hampshire for the ekJerty. This operates under Section 202 of the National
Housing Act and Is regulated by HUD with respect to the rerrtal charges
and operating methods.
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The Organization has a Section 202 Capital Advance. Under guidelines
established by the U.S. Office of Management and Budget Uniform
Guidance, Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulailons (CFR) part 200.
Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles and Audit
Requirements for Federal Awards, the Section 202 Capital Advance Is
considered to be a major program.

Method of accounting

The oonsolldated financial statements of Tri-County Community Action Program,
Inc. have been prepared utilizing the accrual basis of accounting in accordance with
accounting principles generally accepted In the United States of America, as
promulgated by the Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) Accounting
Standards Codtfication (ASC). Under this basis, revenue, other than contributions,
and expenses are reported when incurred without regard to the date of receipt or
payment of cash.

Basis of presentation

The financial statements of the Organization have been prepared In accordance
with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles (US GAAP), which require the
Organization to report Information regarding Its financial position and activftlBs
according to the following net asset classifications;

Net assets wfthout donor rGstrictions include net assets that are not subject
to any donor-Imposed restrictions and may be expended for any purpose in
performlrjg the primary objectives of the Organization. These net assets may
be used at the discretion of the Organization's management and board of
directors.

Net assets wfth donor restrictions Include net assets subject to stipulations
imposed by donors and grantors. Some donor restrictions are temporary In
nature; those restrictions will be met by actions of the Organization or by
passage of time. Other donor restrictions are perpetual In nature, whereby the
donor has stipulated the funds be maintained in perpetuity.

The Organization has net assets with donor restrictions of $678,254 and $817,701
at June 30. 2019 and 2018, respectively. See Note 13

Contributions

Contributions received are recorded as net assets without donor restrictions or net

assets with donor restrictions, depending on the existence and/or nature of any
donor-Imposed restrictions. Support that Is restricted Is reported as an Increase In
net assets without donor restrictions if the restriction expires In the reporting period
In which the contribution is recognized. All other donor restricted contribultons are
reported as net assets with donor restrictions, depending on the nature of the
restriction. When a restriction expires (that is, when a stipulated time restriction
ends or purpose restriction is accomplished), net assets with donor restrictions are
reclassifled to net assets without donor restrictions and reported in the statement of
activities as net assets released from restrictions.
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Accounts Receivable

Accounts recQivable are slated at the amount management expects to collect from
balances outstanding at year-end. Most of the receivables are amounts due from
federal and state awarding agencies and are based on reimbursement for
expenditures made under specific grants or contracts. A portion of the accounts
receivable balance represents amounts due from patients at Carroll County Dental
program. Past due receivables are written off at management's discretion using the
direct write off method; this is not considered a departure from accounting principles
ger^erally accepted in the United State because the effects of the direct write
method approximate those of the allowance method. Management selects accounts
to be written off after analyzing past payment history, the age of the accounts
receivable, and coiiection rates for receivables with similar characteristics, such as

length of time outstanding. The Organization does not charge Interest on
outstanding accounts receivable.

Property and Depreciation

Acquisitions of buildings, equipment and Improvements In excess of $5,000 and ail
expenditures for repairs, maintenance, and betterments that materially prolong the
us^l fives of assets ere capitalized. Buildings, equipment, and improvements are
stated at cost less accumulated depreciation. Depredation is provided using the
straight-line method over the estimated useful lives of the related assets.

Depreciation expense related to assets used solely by an Individual program Is
charged directly to the related program. Depreciation expense for assets used by
more than one program is charged to the program based upon a square footage or
other similar allocation.

Depreciation expense related to administrative assets is inctuded in the indirect cost
pool and charged to the programs In accordance with the indirect cost plan.
Maintenance and repairs that do r>ot materially prolong the useful lives of assets are
charged to expense as Incurred.

Estimated useful lives are as follows:

Buildings and Improvements 20 to 40 years
Vehicles 5 to 8.5 years
Furniture and equipment 5 to 15 years

Client Rents and HUD Rent Subsidy

Comerstone Housing North, Inc.'s rents are approved on an annual basis by the
Department of Housing and Urban Development. Rental Increases are prohibited
without such approval. The clients are charged rent equal to 30% of their Income
less adjustments allowed by the Department of Housing and Urban Development.
Rent subsidies are received from the Department of Housing and Urban
Deveiopmenl for the difference between the allowed rents and the amounts
received from the clients.
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Refundable Advances

Grants received tn advance are recorded as refundable advartces and recognized
as revenue In the period in which the related services or expenditures are
performed or Incurred. Funds received In advance of grantor conditions being met
aggregated $107,157 and $191,069 as of June 30. 2019 and 2018, respectively.

Nonprofit tax status

The Organization is a not-for-proffi Section 501(cX3) organlzatton In accordance
with the internal Revenue Code. It has been classffled as an organization that Is not
a private foundation under the Internal Revenue Code and qualifies for a charitable
contribution deduction for Individual donors. The Organization files Information
returns In the United States. The Organization's Federal Form 990 (Return of
Organization Exempt from Income Tax), is subject to examination by the IRS,
generally for three years after It is filed. The Organization Is no longer subject to
examinations by tax authorities for years prior to 2015.

The Organlzatbn follows FASB ASC, Accounting for Uncertainty in Income Taxes,
which clarifies the accounting for uncertainty in income taxes and prescribes a
recognition threshold and measurement attribute for financial statement recognition
and measurement of tax positions taken or expected to be taken in a tax return.
The Organization does not believe they have taken uncertain tax positions,
therefore, a liability for Incon^e taxes associated with uncertain tax positions has not
been recognized.

Due to changes in the tax law In the 2017 Tax Cuts and Jobs Act. the Organization
is subject to file an Unrelated Business Income Tax Return for unallowed expenses
for the year ended June 30, 2019. These expenses fall under the qualified taxable
fringe benefits. The total tax due for the year ended June 30, 2019 is approximately
$8,900.

Cornerstone Housing North, Inc. Is exempt from Income taxes under Section
5Q1(c)(3) of the Intemal Revenue Code. The Internal Revenue Service has
determined the Organization to be other than a private foundation within the
meaning of Section 509(a).

Retirement plan

The Organization maintains a tax-sheltered annuity plan under the provisions of
Section 403(b) of the Intemal Revenue Code. All employees are eligible to
contribute to tl^ plan beginning on the date they are employed. Each employee
may elect salary reduction agreement contributions In accordance with limits
allowed In the Internal Revenue Code. Employer contributions are at the
Organizatbn's annual discretion. In January 2013, empbyer contribution payments
ceased, therefore as of June 30. 2019 and 2018, there were no discretbnary
contributtons recorded. Further Informatton can be obtained from the
Organization's 403(b) audited financial statements.
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Donated servkes and goods

Contributions of donated services that create or enhance non-financial assets or
that require specialized skills and would typically need to be purchased if not
provided by donation are recorded at Iheir fair values In the period received.

Contributed noncash assets are recorded at fair value at the date of donatton. If
donors stipulate how tong the assets must be used, the contributions are recorded
as net assets with donor restridlons. In the absence of such stipulations,
contributions of noncash assets are recorded as net assets without donor
restrictions.

Donated property and equipment

Donations of property and equipment are recorded as support at their estimated fair
value at the date of donatton. Such donations are reported as net assets without
donor restrictions unless the donor has restricted the donated asset to a specific
purpose. Assets donated with explicit restrictions regarding their use and
contributions of cash that must be used to acquire property and equipment are
reported as net assets with donor restrictions. Absent donor stipuialions regarding
how long those donated assets must be maintained, the Organization reports
expirations of donor restrictions when the donated or acquired assets are placed In
service as instructed by the donor. The Organization rectassifies net assets with
dorK>r restrictions to net assets without donor restrictions at that time.

Promises to Give

Condittonal promises to give are not recognized in the financial statements until the
conditions are substantially met. Unconditional promises to give that are expected
to be collected within one year are recorded at the net realizable value.
Unconditionai promises to give that are expected to be collected in more than one
year are recorded at fair value, which is measured as the present value of their
future cash flows. The discounts on those amounts are computed using risk-
adjusted interest rates applicable to the years In which the promises are received.
Amortization of the discounts is included in contribution revenue. In the absence of
donor stipulatfons to the contrary, promises with payments due In future periods are
restricted to use after the due date. Promises that remain uncollected more than
one year after their due dates are written off unless the donors indicate that
payment is merely postponed. When a restriction expires, net assets with donor
restrictions are reclasslfied to net assets without donor restrictions.

As of June 30, 2019 and 2018, there were promises to give that were absent of
donor stipulations, but restricted in regards to timing, and therefore classified as net
assets with donor restrictions In the amount of $231,161 and $212,207,
respectively. This amount was Included In grants and contracts on the
Consolidated Statement of Activities.
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Use of estimates

The presentation of financial statements In conformity with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America requires management to make
estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities
and disclosures of contingent assets and llabilrties at the date of the financial
statements and the reported amounts of revenue and expenses during the reporting
period. Accordingly, actual results could differ from those estimates.

Fair Value of Financial Instruments

Accounting Standards Codification No. 825 (ASC 825), Disclosures of Fair Value of
Financial instruments, requires the Organization to disclose fair values of its
financial instruments. The carrying amount of the Organization's financial
Instruments which consists of cash, accounts receivable, deposits and accounts
payable, approximate fair value because of the short-term maturity of those
Instruments.

Functional allocation of expenses

The costs of providing the various programs and other activities have been
summarized on a functional basis in the statement of activities. Accordingly, certain
costs have been allocated among the program services and supporting activities
benefited.

Program salaries and related expenses are allocated to the various
programs and supporting services based on actual or estimated time
employees spend on each function as reported on a timesheet.

Workers Compensation expanses are charged to each program based upon
the classification of each employee and altocated to the various program
based upon the time employees spend on each function as noted above.

Paid Leave is charged to a leave pool and Is allocated to each program as a
percentage of total salaries.

Fringe Benefits are charged to a Fringe Benefit Pool. These expenses
Include employer payroll taxes, pension expenses, health and dental
Insurance and unemployment compensation. The poo) Is allocated to each
program based upon a percentage of salaries.

Depreclatfon expense is allocated to each program based upon specific
assets used by the program and is reported as depreciation expense on the
statements of functional expenses.

Other occupancy expenses are applicable to assets which are used by
multiple programs. Buildings are primarily charged to the benefiting program
based upon an analysis of square footage. Costs related to a building Include
depreciation, insurance, utilities, building maintenance, etc. These costs are
reported as space costs on the statements of functional expenses.
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Insurance: automobile insurance is allocated to programs based on vehicle
usage; building liability Insurance is allocated to programs based on square
footage of the buildings; and Insurance for furniture and equipment is allocated
to programs using the book basis of the insured assets.

The romainlna shared expenses are charged to an Indirect Cost Pool and
are allocated to each program based upon a percentage of program expenses.
The expenses Include Items such as administrative salaries, general liability
Insurance, administrative travel, professional fees and other expenses which
cannot be specifically jdentiHed and charged to a program.

The Organization submits an irtdlrecl cost rate proposal for the paid leave, fringe
benefits arxl other indirect costs to the U.S. Department of Health and Hurruin
Services. The proposal, effective for the fiscal year beginning July 1, 2018, received
provisional approval and is effective, until amerxfed. at a rate of 12.50%. Per the
agreement wKh the U.S. Department of Health and Human Services, the
Organization's final rate for the year ended June 30, 2018 was 11.45%. The actual
rate for the year ended June 30, 2019 was approximately 10.44%, which Is
allowable because if Is less than the provisional rate.

Advertising polfcv

The Organization uses advertising to Inform the community about the programs it
offers and the avallebility of services. Advertising is expensed as Incurred. The total
cost of advertising for the years ended June 30, 2019 and 2018 was $11,698 and
$18,616. respectively.

Debt Issuance Costs

During the year ended June 30, 2019, the Organization retrospectively adopted the
provisions of the FASB Accounting Standards Update (ASU) No. 2015-03,
'Simplifying the Presentation of Debt Issuance Costs' The ASU is limited to
simplifying the presentation of debt Issuance costs, and the recognition and
measurement guidance for debt issuance costs is not affected by the ASU.
Amortization expense of $687.has been included with Interest expense in the
consolidated statements of functional expenses for both 2019 and 2018.

New Accounting Pronouncement

On August 18. 2016, FASB issued ASU 2016-14, Nol-for-Profit Entities (Topic 958)
- Presentation of Financial S/afe/7?er7ts of Not-for-Profit Entities. The update
addresses the complexity and understandabllity of net asset classification,
deficiencies in information about liquidity and availability of resources, artd the tack
of consistency In the type of Information provided about expenses and investment
return. The Organization has adjusted the presentation of these statements
accordingly. The ASU has been applied retrospectively to all periods presented.
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NOTE 2. UQUIDITYAND AVAILABILITY
The following represents the OrgenlEalion's financial assets as of June 30, 2019
and 2018;

2019

Financial assets at year-end:
Cash and cash equivalents, undeslgnated $ 1,400,750
Accounts receivable 1,274,083
Pledges necervable 231.161

Total financial assets 2.905,994

Less amounts not available to be

used within one year.
Net assets with donor restrictions 678,254
Less net assets with time restrictions to be

met In less than a year f348.631l

Amounts not available within one year 329.623

Financial assets available to meet general
expenditures over the next twelve months ^

2016

1,329,038
1,156,667

212.207

2,697.902

817,791

(540.6431

277.148

It is the Organization's goal to maintain financial assets to meet 60 days of
operating expenses which approximates $2,786,000 and $2,729,000 respectively,
at June 30. 2019 and 2018.

NOTES. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Cash and cash equivalents consist of cash on hand, funds on deposit with financia!
institutions, and investments with original maturities of three months or less. At
year end and throughout the year, the Organization's cash balances were
deposited with multiple financial institutions. At June 30, 2019 and 2018, the
balances in Interest and non-interest-bearing accounts were Insured by the FDIC up
to $250,000. At June 30. 2019 and 2018, there was approximately $1.750,000 and
$1,200,000, of deposits held In excess of the FDIC limit, respectively. Management
believes the Organization Is not exposed to any significant credit risk on cash and
cash equivalents and considers this a normal business risk.

Cash Restrictions

The Organization is required to maintain a deposit account with a bank as part of
the loan security agreement disclosed at Note 7. It is required to maintain a
balance of $19,968 In the account, which la restricted from withdrawal except to
make payments of debt service or as approved by the US Department of
Agriculture.
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Amounts withdrawn to make payments or aebi service must be replenished with
monthly deposits until the maximum required deposit balance Is achieved. The
balance as of June 30, 2019 and 2018 was $20,010 and $19,980, respectively.
The Organization has made all of their scheduled deposits for the years ended
June 30, 2019 and 2018. These amounts are included in rsstricted cash on the
Statements of Financial Position.

The Organization Is required to maintain a deposit account with another bank as
part of a bond Issue (see bond payable In Note 7). The required balance In the
account is $173,817 and Is equal to 12 monthly payments. The balarKe as of June
30, 2019 and 2018 viras $176,298 and $176,670, respectively. ar>d the Organization
was in compliance wfth this requirement. These amounts are irrcluded In restricted
cash on the Statements of Financial Position.

The Organization maintains a deposit account on behalf of clients who participate in
(he Guardianship Services Program. The balance In the account is restricted for
use on behalf of these clients and an offsetting liability is reported on the financial
statements as other current liabilities. The total current liability related to this
restriction at June 30. 2019 and 2010 was $582,116 and $378,605, respectively.
These amounts are Included in other liabilities on the Statements of Financial
Position. The total restricted cash within this account at June 30, 2019 and 2018
was $582,118 and $378,605, respectively, and Is included In the restricted cash
balance on the Statements of Financial Position.

At June 30, 2019, the Organization had $45,198 In rBstricted cash relating to the
property that Is held for sale at year end. Upon the sale of the property, It vwll be
donated to another non-profit Organization.

Certain cash accounts related to Cornerstone Housing North, Inc. are restricted for
certain uses In the Organization under rules and regulations prescribed by the
Department of Housing and Urban Development. The total amount restricted at
June 30. 2019 and 2018 was $179,277 and $131,610, respectively. See Note 15.

NOTE 4. INVENTORY
In 2019 and 2018, Inventory included weatherizatlon materials which had been
purchased In bulk. These items are valued at the most recent cost. A physical
inventory Is taken annually. Cost is detenmined using the first-ln, first-out (FIFO)
method. Inventory at June 30, 2019 and 2018, consists of weatherizatlon materials
totaling $85,886 and $87,569, respectively.
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During the year ended June 30. 2018, the Organization adopted the provisions of
the FASB Accounting Standard Update (ASU) 2015-11, Inventory, (Topic 330):
Simplifying the Measurement of Inventory, which simplifies the subsequent
measurement of inventory by requiring inventory to be measured at the lower of
cost or net realizable value. Net realizable value is the estimated selling price of
inventory in the ordinary course of business, less reasonably predictable costs of
completion, disposal and transportation. The Organlzatton has evaluated ASU
2015-11 and has determined that there Is no material Impact to the finandai
statements.

NOTES. ACCRUED EARNED TIME

For the years ending June 30. 2019 and 2018, employees of the Organization were
eligible to accrue vacation for a maximum of 160 hours. At June 30. 2019 and
2018, the Organization had accrued a liability for future annual leave time that its
empbyees had eamed and vested In the amount of $204,079 and $203,121,
respectively.

NOTE 6. PROPERTY

Property consists of the folbwing at June 30, 2019:

Building
Equipment
Construction

in progress
Land

Capitalized
Cost

$ 9,709.749
1,950,063

2.500

423:840

Accumulated

Depredation

Net

Book Value

$3,469,618 $6,240,131
1,708.917 241,146

2,500
423.840

mmm mmM'

Property consists of the fbllowing at June 30. 2018:

Building
Equipment
Land

Capitalized

C2St

$10,003,944
2,384,905
423.840

im

Accumulated

Depreciation

$ 3.448.411
1,754,913

Net

Book Value

$ 6.555.533
629.992

423.840

The Organization has use of computers and equipment which are the property of
state and federal agencies under grant agreements. The equipment, whose book
value Is immateriai to the finandai statements, is not included In the Organizatbn's
property and equipment totals.
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Depredation expense for the years ended June 30. 2019 and 2018 totaled
$447,669 and $463,483, respectively.

The Organization has property held for sate at June 30. 2019 amounting to
$47,000, which is classified as a current asset In the accompanying consolidated
statements of financial position. The total loss on the write down to martlet value of
this property was $255,492.

NOTE 7. LONG TERM DEBT
The long term debt of the Organization as of June 30, 2019 and 2016 consisted of
the foltowlng:

2019 2018

Note payable with the U5DA requiring 360 monthly
installments of $1,664, Including interest at 5% per
annum. Secured by general business assets. Final
installment due January 2027. $ 124.867 $ 138,225

Note payable with a bank requiring 120 monthly
installments of $3,033, including interest at 4.69%
per annum. Secured by first mortgages on two
commercial properties. Final installment due April
2021. 328,896 349,131

Note payable vrith a bank requiring 60 monthly
Installments of $459, including Interest at 5% per
annum. This note was an unsecured line of cr^lt
that was converted to a term ban during the year
errded June 30, 2016. Final Installment due April
2021. 9,618 14,500

Note payable to a finandng company requiring 72
monthly Installments of $312, Induding Interest at
5,49% per annum. Secured by the Organization's
vehicle. Final installment due August 2021. 7,642 10,874

Note payable to a financing company requiring 72
monthly Installments of $313, Induding Interest at
5.54% per annum. Secured by the Organization's
vehide. Final installment due July 2021, 7,385 10,637

Note payable to a financing company requiring 60
monthly Installments of $143, induding interest at
5.99% per annum. Secured by the Organization's
vehicle. Final Installment due November 2020. 2,331 3,863
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Note payable to a financing company requiring 72
monthly installments of $248, Including interest at
6.10% per annum. Secured by the Organization's
vehicle. Final installment due February 2023.

Note payable with a bank requiring 60 monthly
installments of $2,512, including Interest at 5.51%
per annum. Secured by second mortgage on
commercial property. Final balloon payment is due In
March 2023.

Bond payable with a bank requiring monthly
Installments of $14,485, including interest of 2.75%
plus the bank's internal cost of funds multiplied by
67% with an indicative rate of 3.28%. Secured by
first commercial real estate mortgage on various
properties and assignments of rents at various
properties. Final installment due August 2040.

Cornerstone Housing North, Inc. capital advance
due to the CJepartment of Housing and Urban
Development. This capital advance is not subject to
interest or principal amortization and will be forgiven
after 40 years, or In August 2047.

Cornerstone Housing North. Inc. mortgage payable
due to New Hampshire Housing Finance Authority.
The mortgage Is not subject to Interest or principal
amortization. Payments are deferred for 40 years,
final payment due in August 2047.

Total long term debt before unamortized debt
issuance costs

Unamortized deferred financing costs

Total long term debt
Less current portion due within one year

9.739

395.429

12.041

403,244

2.634,595 2,719.260

1.617,600 1,617,600

250.000 260.000

5,388.102 5.529,375

f11.81Bj (12.7051

5,376,284 5,516.670
1148.4491 (142.7331

22



The scheduled maturities of tong-term debt as of June 30,2019 were as follows:

Years ending
^une 30 Amount

2020 $ 148,449
2021 437,624
2022 123.156
2023 485,461
2024 118,295

Thereafter 4.075.097

5.388 J02-

As descrlbBd at Note 3, the Organization Is required to maintain a reserve account
with a bank for the first two notes payable listed above.

NOTES. CAPITAL LEASE OBLtGATIONS
During the year ended June 30,2016, the Organization leased a phone system and
copter under the terms of capita! leases, expiring in November 2020 and March
2021, respectively. During the year ended June 30, 2017, the Company leased an
additional copier under the terms of a capital lease, expiring in May 2021. The
assets and liabilities under the capital leases are recorded at the lower of the
present value of the minimum lease payments or the fair value of the assets. The
assets are depreciated over their estimated lives.

The obligations included In capital leases at June 30, 2019 and 2018, consisted of
the following:

2019 2018

Lease payable to a financing company with
monthly Installments of $208 for principal and
irrterest at 9.5% per annum. The lease Is secured
by the phone system and will mature in November
2020. $ 3,291 $ 5,362

Lease payable to a financing company with
monthly installments of $122 for principal and
interest at 8.841% per annum. The lease Is
secured by a copier and will mature in March
2021. 2,261 3,467
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Lease payable to a financing company with
monthly Installments of $122 for principal and
interest at 8.918% per annum. The lease is
secured by a copier and wfll mature In May 2021. 2.673 3.B42

8,225 12.671

Less current portion (4.870) (4.445)

The scheduled maturities of capital lease obligations as of June 30, 2019 were as
follows:

Years ending
June 30 Amount

2020 $ 4,870
2021 3.355

NOTE 9. DEMAND NOTE PAYABLE

The Organization has available a $750,000 line of credit with Us primary financial
institution which is secured by real estate mortgages and assignments of leases
and rents on various properties as disclosed In the line of credit agreement
Bomowlngs under the line bear interest at 5.00% per annum, and totaled $316,000
at June 30, 2018. There was no balar>ce outstanding at June 30, 2019. The line Is
subject to renewal each January.

The Organization was issued an unsecured revolving line of credit in 2014 v/ith the
New Hampshire Department of Admlnistratbn Services. The Organization was not
required to make payments of Interest or principal prior to maturity. At June 30,
2018, the outstanding debt totaled $200,022, which included accrued Interest of
$21,434. The unsecured revolving line of credit was paid off In full during the year
ended June 30, 2019.

NOTE 10. OPERATING LEASES

The Organization has entered into numerous lease commitments for space.
Leases under non-cancelable lease agreements have various starting dates,
lengths, and terms of payment and renewal. Additionalty, the Organization has
several facilitlee which are leased on a month to month basis. For the years ended
June 30, 2019 arxl 2016, the annual rent expense for leased facilities totaled
$181,127 and $165,227, respectively.
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Future minimum lease payments under^ norxancelable operating leases having
Initial terms In excess of one year as of June 30, 2019, are as follows;

Years ending
June 30 Amourrt

2020 $ 147,778
2021 65,003
2022 3.301

NOTE 11. IN-KIND CONTRIBUTIONS

The Organization records the value of In-kind contributions according to the
accounting policy described in Note 1. The Head Start, transportation and elder
programs rely heavily on volunteers who donate their services to the Organization.
These services are valued based upon the comparative market wage for similar
paid positions.

The Organization Is also the beneficiary of a donation of in kind In the form of below
market rent for some of the facilities utilized by the Head Start and elder programs.
The value of the in-kind rent is recorded at the difference between the rental

payment and the market rate for the property based upon a recent appraisal.

Many other irxiividuals have donated significant amounts of time to the activities of
the Organization. The financial statements do not reflect any value for these
donated services since there Is no reliable basis for making a reasonable
determination.

NOTE 12. CONCENTRATION OF RISK

Tri-County Community Action Program, Inc. receives a majority of its support from
federal and state.governments. For the years ended June 30, 2019 and 2018.
approximately $13,951,828 (77%) and $13,773,803 (75%), respectively, of the
Organization's total revenue was received from federal and state governments. If a
significant reduction in the level of support were to occur, ft would have a significant
effect on the Organization's programs and activities.

Comerstone Housing North, Inc. receives a large majority of Its support from the
U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development. For the years ended June
30, 2019 and 2018, approximately 69% of the Organizations total revenue was
derived from the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development. In the
absence of additional revenue sources, the future existence of Cornerstone
Housing North, Inc. Is dependent upon the funding policies of the U.S. Department
of Housing and Urban Development
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The majority of Cornerstone Housing North, Inc.'s assets are apartment projects,
for which operations are concentrated fn the eideriy person's real estate market In
addition, the Organization operates In a regulated environment The operation of
the Organization is subject to administrative directives, rules and regulations of
federal, state and local regulatory agencies, including, but not limited to. HUD.
Such administrative directives, rules and regulations are subject to change by an
act of Congress or an administrative change mandated by HUD. Such changes
may occur with little notice or inadequate funding to pay for the related cost,
Including the administrative burden, to comply with the change.

NOTE 13. NET ASSETS WITH DONOR RESTRICTIONS
Net assets with donor restrictions are available for the following specific program
services as of June 30, 2019 and 2018:

2019 2018

Temporary Municipal Funding $ 231,161 $ 212.207

10 Bricks Shelter Funds 142,190 142,190

FAR ■  117,470 136,614

Restricted Buildings 87,541 190,049

Support Center 25,939 -

Weatherization 25,000

Loans - HSGP 19,907 21,454

FAP/EAP 11.290 23,249

RSVP Program Funds 7,056 5,021

Senior Meals 5,130 .

Head Start 3,999 4.172

Donations to Maple Fund 1,571 1,586
Homeless Programs - 27,680

USDA 10,332

Loans - HHARLF 6,987

IDN Capacity Fund 32,194

Community Needs Assessment 4,076

Total net assets with donor restrictions ■£.

NOTE 14. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

Grant Compliance
The Organization receives funds under several federal and state grants. Under the
terms of the grants the Organization is required to comply with various stipulatlotis
including use and time restrictions, if the Organization was found to be
noncompliant with the provisions of the grant agreements, the Organization could
be liable to the grantor or faoe discontinuation of funding.
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Environmental Contlnaencfes

On March 30. 20O9, the Organization's Board of Directors agreed to secure
ownership of a l.2>acre site located in Berlin, New Hampshire. There are 2
buildings on this site designated as the East Wing and West Wing Buildings which
were formeriy used as a research arvt development facility for the Berlin Mills
Company.

The exterior soil and interior parts ot the East Wing Building contained
contaminants which required environmental remediation, in a letter dated May 2,
2012, the Slate of New Hampshire Department of Environment Services (the
Department) noted that the remedial actions for the exterior soils and parts of the
East Wing Building had been completed to the Department's satisfaction.

In addition, the Department noted that the contaminants related to the West Wing
Building did not pose an exposure hazard to site occupants, area residents, and the
environment, provided the Wast Wlrtg Building Is maintained to prevent further
structural deterioration. If further deterioration occurs and contaminants are

released Into the environment, the Organization could be required to take additional
action Including containment and remediation.

Loss Contfnqer7c/es

Durir^ the year ended June 30, 201B, legal actions vtere brought against the
Organization. Due to the uncertainty of the outcome of such cases as of June 30.
2019, as well as the uncertainty of the Organization's potential liability, no amount
has been accrued by the Organization at this time.

NOTE 15. REPLACEMENT RSERVE AND RESIDUAL RECEIPTS ACCOUNTS

Under Cornerstone Housing North, inc.'s regulatory agreement with HUD, the
Organization is required to set aside amounts into a replacement reserve for the
replacement of property and other project expenditures approved by HUD. HUD-
restricted deposits of $129,407 and $106,548 were held in a segregated account at
June 30. 2019 and 2018, respectively. HUD-restricted deposits generally are not
available for operating purposes.

Cornerstone Housing North. Inc.'s use of the residual receipts account Is contingent
upon HUD'S prior written approval. Residual receipts of $46,514 and $21,326 were
held In a segregated account for the years ended June 30, 2019 and 2018,
respectively.

HUD has initiated policies to recapture funds built up in residual receipts accounts
upon renewal of the Organization's project rental assistance contract. The policies
direct that the amounts in excess of certain limits in the residual receipts account be
(a) used to offset rent subsidies due from HUD under HAP contracts, or (b) remitted
directly to HUD. The policies generally require project owners to limit the monies
accumulated In the re^dual receipts account to $250 per unit.
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In accordance with the policy noted above, eubaequent to year end the
Organization was required to remit funds to HUD totaling $31,412. In addition to the
funds remitted, HUD approved the Organization to withdraw $11,852 from the
residual receipts account for equipment.

NOTE 16. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

Subsequent events are events or transactions that occur after the statement of
financial position date, but before financial statements are available to be issued.
Recognized subsequent events are events or transactions that provide additional
evidence about conditions that existed at the statement of financial position date,
including the estimates Inherent In the process of preparing financial statements.
NorKecognized subsequent events are events that provide evidence about
conditions that did not exist at the statement of finarK:laj poslfion date, but arose
after that date. Management has evaluated subsequent events through October 21,
2019, the date the financial statements were available to be Issued.
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TRUCOUNTY COMMUNITY ACTIQM PROGRAM. INC.
s rKAn'^*M

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL

REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON

AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED
IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOYERNftfENT AUO/HNG STAWDAffOS

To the Board of Directors of

TrvCounty Community Action Program, Inc.
Berlin, New Hampshire

We have audited, In accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contair^ed In Govemmenf Auditing Standards
issued by the Comptroiter General of the United States, the financial statements of Tri-County
Community Action Program, Inc. (a nonprofit organization), which comprise the statement of financial
position as of June 30, 2019, and the related statements of activities, functional expenses and cash
flows for the year then ended, and the related notes to the fhandal statements, and have issued our
report thereon dated October 21, 2019.

Internal Control Over Ffnanclal Reporting
In planning and performing our pudit of the consoiidated financial statements, we considered Tri-County
Community Action Program Inc.'s Internal control over financial reporting (internal control) to determine

audit procedures that are appropriate In the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our
opinion on the consolidated financial statements, but not (or the purpose of expressing an opinion on
the effectiveness of Trl-County Community Action Program Inc.'s internal control. Accordingly, we do
not express an opinion on the effectiveness of Tri-County Community Action Program Inc.'s internal
control.

A doflciancy In internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow
management or employees. In the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or
detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis. A matddal weakness is a defidency, or a
combinaton of deficiencies, in Intsma} control, such that there is a reasortabie possibility that a material
misstatement of the entity's financial statements wilt not be prevented, or det^ed and corrected on a
timely basis. A deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control
that is less severe than a materiel weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged
with governance.

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose descfit>ed in the first paragraph of this
section and was not designed to identify all defidencies in tntemal control that might be material
weaknesses or significant deficlendes. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any
deficiendes in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses. Howaver, material
weakrrasses may exist that have not been Identified. ,
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Compliance and Other Matters
As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether Tri-County Community Action Program Inc.'s
tin^dal statements are free from material misstalement, we performed tests of Its compliance with
certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompjiance with which
could a direct and materiel effect on the determination of consolidated flnancial statement
amounts. HowevBr, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of
our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no

or olber matters that are required to be reported under Government
Ai/aaing Stenderds.

Purpose of this Report
The ̂ rpose of this report Is solely to desalbe the scope of our testing of Internal control and
cxjmpRanw ar^ the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinton on (he effectiveness of the
orgartotlon s internal control or on compliance. This report Is an Integral part of an audit performed in
accordance with C^vemment Auditing Standards in considering the orgsnizatton's Internal control and
compliance. Accordingly, this communication ts rrat suitable for any other purpose.

October 21, 2019
North Conway, New Hampshire
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT ON COMPLIANCE
FOR EACH MAJOR PROGRAM AND ON INTERNAL CONTROL
OVER COMPUANCE REQUIRED BY THE UNIFORM GUIDANCE

To Ihe Board ot DIreclore of

Tri-County Communily Action Program, Inc.
Bertln, New Hampshire

Report on Compllanco for Each Mi^or Federal Program
We have audited Tri-County Community Action Program Inc.'s compliance with the types of compliance
requirements described In the 0MB Compliance Supplement that could have 8 direct and material
effect on each of TrI-County Community Action Program lnc.'s major federel programs for the year
ended June 30, 2019. Tri-County Community Action Program lnc.'8 major federal programs are
Identified in the summary of auditors' results section of the accompanying schedule of findings and
questioned costs.

Managements Responsibility
Management Is responsible for compliance with the requirements of laws, regutetlons, contracts, and
grants appiicabie to its federal programs.

Auditors' Reaponsiblllty
Our responsibility Is to express an opinion on compliance for each of Tri-County Community Action
Program Ina's major federel programs based on our audit of the types of compBance requirements
referred to at>ove. We conducted our eudlt of compliance In accordance with auditing standards
generally accepted In the United States of America; the standards applicable to flr^ndal audits
contairwd In Government Auditing Standards, Issued by the Comptroller General of the United States;
and the audit requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200. Uniform
Administrative Requaaments, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform
GuidarKse). Those standards and Uniform Guidance require that we plan and perform the audit to
obtain reasonable assurance about whether noncompllance with the types of compliance reqidrements
referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on a major federal program occurred. An
audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence about Tii-County Community Action Program Irtc.'s
compliance with those requirements and perfoiming auch other procedures as we considered
necessary In the circumstances.

We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion on compliance for each major
federal program. However, our audit does not provide a legal determlnallon of Tri-County Community
Action Program Inc.'s compliance.
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Opinion on Each Major Federal Program
Community Action Program. Inc. complied. In all material respects with the

requirements referred to above that could have a direct and malertal effect on each
of Its major federal programs for the year ended June 30, 2019.

Report on Internal Control over Compliance
Action Program, Ino! Is msponslble for establlshino and

r^^^ m T the typos of compliance requir^antsPerfomning our audit of compliance, we considered Tri-County^mmunlty Actton Pto^m Inc. o internal contnol over compliance with the types of requirements that

P^ures that are approprate In the circumstances for the purpose of expressing an opinion on

M  proeram and to test and report on internal control over compliance In
n . ,™ °"idance, but not for the purpose of axpresslna an opinion on the

eS^nnnc °/'"*1"'®'f o^t Compliance. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on theeffectlvenBSS of Tit-County Community Action Program, inc.'s internal control over compliance.

"""P'^ when the design or operation of a confrol over
tf management or emptoyaes, in the normal course of performing theirassigned ^nctlons, to prevent or detect and correct, noncomplisnca with a type of 3ian»

PAtaram on a timely basis. A material weakness In Internal control over
mn^nce Is a deflden^ or combination of deflaencies. In Intamal control over compliance such that
f^^T I? material noncompilance with a type of compliance requirement of a
Its? ^ prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis A significant

'? Is a deficiency, or a combination of deflctendes inInternal rontrol over compliance with a type of compliance requlremeni of a federal proaram that Is less

aTnb" enough to merit
Our consWeration of infernal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the first

k" 'dentify all deficienclS In inteSal ̂ ntrol oJSmight be matenal weaknesses or significant deficiencies. We did not Identify any
mnt5 I oi? compliance that we consider to be material wealmesses. Howevermaterial weaknesses may exist that have not been Identified.

cofniXlance Is solely to describe the scope of ourwUng of iritemal control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the requirements of
Uniform Guidance. Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other purpose.

October21.2019
North Conway, New Hampshire
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SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30. 2019

1  The auditors' report expresses an unmodified opinion on the financial statements of TrI-County
Community Action Program, Inc.

2. No significant deficiencies relatlr^ to the audit of the firwncial statements are reported In the
Independent Auditors' Report on Internal Control over Finandel Reporting and on Compliance
and other Matters Based on an Audit of Financial Statements Performed in Accordance with
Government Auditmg Standards.

3. No Instances of noncompliance material to the financial siatemenls of Trl-County Community
Action Program. Inc. which would be required to be reported In accordance with Government
Auditing Starfdards, were disclosed during the audit.

4. No slgnifKianl deficiencies in internal control over major federal award programs during the audit
are reported In the Independent Auditors' Report on Compliance for Each Major Program and
on Internal Control over Compliance In Accordance with the Uniform Guidance.

5. The auditors' report on compliance for the major federal award programs for Tri-County
Community Action Program, Inc. expresses an unmodified opinion on all major programs.

6. No audit findings that are required to be reported In accordance with 2 CFR 200.516(a) are
reported in this Schedule.

7. The programs tested as major programs included:

U.S. DepL of Health & Human Services, LIHEAP ~ CFDA #93.568

U.S. Dept. of Health & Human Services, Head Start - CFDA #93.600

U.S. Dept of Energy, Weatherization Assistance for Low ltv»me Individuals - CFDA
#81.042

8. The threshold for distinguishing Type A and 8 programs was $750,000.

9. Tri-County Community Action Program. Inc. was determined to be a low-risk auditee,

FINDINGS - FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AUDIT

None

FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS - MAJOR FEDERAL AWARD PROGRAMS AUDIT

None

36
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Anne Barber

Linda Massimilla

Secretary
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Tri-County Community Action Program^ Inc.

Key Personnel

BWP Contract

FY2021

Name job Title Salary % Salary
Paid from

this Contract

Amount Paid from

this Contract

(eanne Robillard Chief Executive Officer $120,000 0% 0

Randall Pilotte Chief Financial Officer $80,080 0% 0

Kristy Letendre Chief Program Officer $70,000 0% 0

Gerald Millikin Department Head $55,000 0% 0

Nathan Mills Weatherization Director $50,000.08 20% $10,000.02

Dennis Downs Production Supervisor $44,720 15% $6,708
lessica Young Program Supervisor $33,280 30% $9,984.00
Samantha Roy Home Heating Repair and

Replacement Coordinator

$33,280 100% $33,280



tfeaime L. Robillard

rOBE STREBfCXnS

Program development, management and administration ♦ Communit)' collaborarions
Development of poliq', protocol, and service deliver)' to meet funder standards

Grant writing and management ♦ Budget performance and financial reporting
Innovative solutions & problem solving ♦ Capacity building

Professional presentations ♦ Public speaking
Dedication ♦ Imagination ♦ Determination ♦ Fortitude

PROFESSIOI^AL EXPEBIEIVCE

Tri-Coanij Commimitj Action Programs, Inc.
Chief Exerntfive Officer

Berlin, NH 2019 - current FT empioytnent

Tri-Couniy Commoniij Aciion Programs, Inc.
Chief Operating Officer
Berlin, IVH 2016-2018

Responsible for the operations of six agency Divisions with 15 individual programs that provide over
60 consumer services across three counties of Northern New Hampshire. Essential duties include;
supervision of Division Directors, oversee and monitor program resources, revenues, expenditures
and budget performance; tactical oversight of programs to meet or exceed agency defined strategic
goals; develop and implement strategics to improve individual programs and overall agency program
and fiscal performance; oversee and lead special projects such as the Annual Report, Strategic Plan,
Community Needs Assessment process, and work with Senior Management Team to develop new
service initiatives. Provide tactical guidance to Division Directors to trouble shoot issues and problems
in the daily operations of programs.

Tri'Counly Community Aciion Programs, Inc.
IHvision Direclor: TCCAP Prevention Services

Berlin, Nil 2015- 2016

Responsible for four agcnc)' programs under the umbrella of TCCAP Prevention Services; oversee
division resources, revenues, and expenditures and monitor budget performance; general oversight of
programs to meet or exceed agency defmcd strategic goals; supervise program directors; write grants
to support programs, monitor results, and prepare grant reports and financial statements for funders
and agency; develop fundraising and marketing strategies for programs; represent program through
partacipation in state and local initiatives relative to program/division goals and service deliver)';
collaborate with stakeholders and elected officials, including presenting legislative testimony.

TrhCounly Cummniuly Aciion Pr<^rams, Inc.
Program/Diviiion Diredor: iSupporl Ccnler al Burch nouse
Lilllelon, New Uampshtre 2007-3015

Oversee daily operation and supervision of domestic and sexual violence crisis center and residential
shelter; write grants to support program.s, monitor results, and prepare grant reports and financial
statements for funders and parent agenq-; oversee program resources, revenues and expenditures, and
monitor budget performance and progress toward strategic goals; create and direct victim advocac)'
programs to ensure compliance with grant deliverables and applicable state and federal law; develop

•  fundraising and marketing strategies; participate in state and local collaborations to enhance victim
services; represent program in state and federal victim service initiatives, including presentation of
legislative testimony; create and present trainings for medical and legal professionals on legal standards
and best practices for vicdm services.



JLRobi]Jaixi*2

Bookkeepers Women's HuroJ Entfrepreneariol IVeiwork (WREIV^
Bethlehem. IVB cnrrent PT emplojment
Responsible for grant fiscal tracking, reporting, fiinds release and account transfers, bi-weekly payroll
and 941 payments, accounts payable and receivable, month end reconciliations for bank accounts,
credit cards, petty cash, retail and market sales; monthly POS/QB reconciliation for three retail
locations, preparing monthly cash flow, forecasts, and standard fiscal reports for Board of Directors.

TriaCountj Commimity Actioo Programs, Inc.
Direct iServices/Voliinteer Coordinatort Support Center at Bnrch House
Littleton, IVew Hampshire 1997 to 2007
Pro\'idc advocacy and direct service to victims of domestic and sexual violence; supervise court
advocacy programs; recruit, train and supervise staff, volunteers, and interns; develop agency system.s,
policies and protocols; create and present comraunitj' outreach presentations and campaigns; present
school-based violence prevention classes for grades K-12 ; provide on-call coverage of crisis line

Director: Daverhill Area Jnvenile Diversion Program
Woodsrille, IVew Hampshire 1999-2001
Recruit, train, and supervise volunteer diversion committees; establish communit)- programming for
diverted youth; supportive counseling of youth; maintain collaborative relationships bet\\'een the court
system, juvenile service officers, local police departments, and diversion program; prepare and file
court reports on diverted youth; community outreach and education

Counselor/Title I Teacher: IVorthcrn Familj Institute-Jefferson Shelter
Jefferson, IVew Hampshire 1996-1999
Provide individual supportive counseling to adjudicated youth, facilitate peer support groups, develop
and implement treatment plans and case management services to clients, supervise and tutor youth in
classroom .setting, supervise youth in daily living skills

Edncaiion

BS in Unman Serrices, Springfield College School of Hnmon Services, Boston, NA
CriminaJ Justice Concentration, Graduated tvUb 4.0 CPA

AS m Drug and iVlrohol Rehabilitation Connscling fOARC Program!
Southern Connecticut Conunonity College. New Baven, CT

Additional Nkiiln- Proicssional Mj<Midftr«hip and Eivie Afffiiiniiowia

Chairman, Bethlehem Board of Selectmen, Town of Bethlehem Twice Eleaed 2006-2010

Chairman, Arts Alliance of Northern New Hampshire 2000-2003, Treasurer 1996-1998

Chairman, Haverhiil Area Faxnily Violence Council 1998-2003
Certified PRIME FOR LIFE Impaired Driver Intervention Program Instructor #NH16199
Registered Sexual Harassment Prevention Trainer in the State of New Hampshire
Board Member, Women's Rural Encrcprcncunal Network 2014; hidividuaiMember2008-2017

Bethlehem Planning Board 2010-2015
Bethlehem Conservation Commission 2006 - current

Granite United Way, North Countiy Cabinet Member 2011-2012
TCCAP: Commendation- Division Director Au-ard, 2011

Bethlehem Citizen's Ach'isot)' Committee on Recycling 2007-2010
Uccnscd Foster Parent, State of NH 2000-2006

Small Business Owner : Aurora Energies 2015- current

Speakeasy Trio jazz Vocalist/ Sweet Jamm Swing Band Jazz Vocalist 1997- cumnt
Member, United States Figure Skating Association/International Skating Institute mnrni since 1993



Randall Sv Pilotte

Summary

Accounting professional with over 29 years of experience, of which 21 years were with a single private manufacturer.
16 years of experience managing accounting professionals. Key conpctencies include:

Financial Statements Accounts Payables Inventory Fixed Assets
Payroll Bank Reconciliations Accounts Receivables Sales/Use Tax
Budgeting Cash Flow Management Audits Forecasting

Experience

TRl-COUNTY COMMUNiry ACTION PROGRAM, INC.. Berlin, NH 06/2013-Prcscnt

CFO (2017 - Present)
Work closely with the CEO, Treasurer and Finance Committee to identify performance goals for the Agency and to
maintain systems to monitor performance against those goals. Plan, direct, coordinate, implement and evaluate the
financial management systems and activities ofdre Agency with a budget of $18M.

Prepare/provides complete and accurate financial, statistical, and accounting records for the Agency and outside
regulatory agendcs.
As a member of the senior management team, assists in the formulation and execution of corporate finance
policies, objectives and programs.
Prepares program and agency budgets in conjunction with the CEO and Program Directors. Plan, direct,
coordinate, implement and evaluate fiscal performance reviews ofTri-County CAPs divisions.
Hire, train, direct and evaluate employee performance within the department; recommend promotions and salary
adjustments.
Provides supervision and direction for the Facilities Management Team, ensuring that all mortgages, leases and
covenants arc mamtaincd for Tri-County CAP's facilities. Creation of five-year ct^ital plan-
Reviews cash flows for each division, monitor cash management practices, and monitorinvestments associated
with each property.

Prepared five-year debt reduction plan.

i'iscal Director/Interim CFO (2016— 2017)

Direct and manage a fiscal staff of 5 and processes associated with the general ledger, payroll, and accounts
payable, accounts receivable, cash receipts and fixed assets.
Prepare and supervise the production offinancial statements including Balance Sheet, Revenue and Expense
Reports, and Cost Summaries on a monthly and annual basis.
Maintain proper accounting controls on grants and contributions to ensure accurate revenue reporting and expoise
tracking to support periodic monitoring's by funders and auditors.
Ensure all balance sheet, revenue and expaisc accounts arc analyzed and reconciled paiodically.
Collaborate with Division Directors to monitor dqjartmcntal revenue and expenses versus budget.
Worked with the CFO to develop real time monthly and annual financial reporting; and implementing
departmental goals.
Prepare audit schedules for external auditois.
Collaborate with external auditors in completing annual audit in a timely manner.

Accounting Manager (2015-2016)

Sr. Accountant (2013-2014)
RANDALL PILOTTE RESUME:

KENT NUTRITION GROUP. INC. ffA/a Blue Seal Feeds, Inc.). Londonderry. NH 03/1989-09/2010



Assistant ControUer (2005-2010)

•  Ensured an accurate andtimely monthly and year end close, consisting ofthe preparation of a consolidated and
individual financial statement in accordance with GAAP for nine manufacturing plants and 11 retail stores with
gross revenues in excess of S200M. Additional responsibilities included preparing journal entries, account
analysis, inventory review and observation, fixed assets, and depreciation.

• Managed, trained, and supervised a staff accountantresponsiblefor ensuring accurate journal entries, inventory
reconciliation, tonnage tax returns, bank reconciliations, and assignment of special projects.

•  Oversaw all aspects of proprietary software, multi-state payroll system for 500 en^ioyces. Prepared all federal
and state payroll tax reports, including quarterly and year-end returns,processing of W2s, and supervision of
payroll clerk.

•  Interfaced with 18 various banks throughout New England and Mid-Atlantic area used as depositories.
>  Prepared multi-state sales/use tax returns and acted as point of contact for audits.
•  Pro-actively coached and consulted plant and store management on the annual budget development process.
•  Oversaw month-end accmals.

• Assisted and re^onded to auditors' requests on annual audit.
•  Filed annual franchise and abandoned property reports with appropriate states.

Accounting Manager (1999-2005)

Supported the Corporate Controller's initiatives by providing supervision and oversight to the Accounting function.
Superviscdand trained two accounts payable clerks on Chart of Accounts, Accounts Payable, timely and accurate
processing and payment of vendor's invoices, employee travel reimbursements, and standard accounting practices.

Accountant/Payroll Supervisor (1994-1999)

Accountant (1989-1994)

NORTHERN TELECOM. INC.. Concord. NH 05/1987-03/1989

Associate Results Accountant (1988-1989)'

Accounts Payable (1987-1988)

Education

Bachelor of Science, Accounting, Franicun Pierce College, Concord, NH
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Kristy
Letendre

"If human beings arc perceived as potentials rather than
problems, as possessing strengths instead of weaknesses, as

unlimited rather than dull and unresponsive, then they thrive
andgrowtothelrcapabllities."

-Barbara Bush

Exuericncc

July 2020-Present
Chief Programs Officer^ TCCAP, Inc

Responsible to provide leadership, supervision, oversight, and management of
the agency's programs and services directly or through a program director or
manager as well as works with the Chief Executive Officer to develop future
business for the agency. Responsible to ensure that all programs and services
comply with national program standards and stale / federal governing laws and
requirements.

May 2019-Pre8ent

DlvlsioD Director* TCCAP, Inc- Prevention

Responsible to provide Sr. Leadership and oversight to the development,
design, daily operation, compliance, and financial solvency of the programs
and facilities under Prevention Services which include Guardianship Services;
Homeless Programs, including Tyler Blain Homeless Shelter, and Advocacy
and Support Services for Victims of Domestic Violence and Sexual Assault,
including Emergency Shelter Services at the Support Center at Burch House

Sept 2018-Pre8ent

Division Operations Coordinator^.TCCAP, Inc- Pre\'aitian

Responsible for monitoring compliance of grant deliverables and legal / ethical
integrity of programs and services ofTcred throughout the Division. Responsible
to compile and analyze division data; reporting trends and outcomes to Sr.
management and local stakeholders. Responsible to develop, review, and
update program written policy, procedures, and work flows. Responsible for
program development and oversight.

May2017-Augu8t 2018
North Country SUD Continuum of Care Faciiy
Coordinator ̂ ^North Country Health Consor^

.  -t-- ̂  ..-v/

'•rf'

COCF; The North Country Region's desip^fcaiimdjja^
work with regional key stakeholders to conduHn ve assets and gaps
analysis; reporting back findings to NH DM^ti^Jiacilitate the development
of a comprehensive plan aimed to crcaB|^ c^oiist; effective^ and'well-

4--, ••
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April 2014-May 2017
Division Director • TCCAP, Inc-Clinical Services

Responsible to provide Sr. Leadership and oversight to the development,
&j^gn, daily operation, compliance, and financial solvency ofthe programs and
^\ties under Clinical Services including the Division of Alcohol and other

icrviccs, Friendship House; the region's 32-bed Residential Treatment
nt9. and the Tamwordi Dental Center Practice.

2014

ArvTciatc Division Director ®^TCCAP, Inc- Division of Alcohol ajid Drugs

Uitconjunction with the Division Director, responsible to provide joint Sr.
Sli<^crship and oversight to the development, design, daily operation,

pliance, and financial solvency of the programs and facilities under the
ivision of Alcohol and other Drug Services, including Friendship House, the

i^cgion's 32- bed Residential Treatment facility, the out-patient SUD treatment
practice with 6 satellite sites throughout the 3 counties in the North Country and
the In^jaired Driver Care Management Program.

Accomplishments

Friendship House New Construction-Bethlehem. NH-S5.2 MIL - 2015-2018

l7,588-sq ft. 32-Bed Residential Substance Use Disordcr l reuiment Facility

•. Submission of state and federal grant applications resulting in $2.7 MIL in
awards & executed a grassroots advocacy campaign securing the remaining S2.5
MIL in anonymous donations

•  Issued all final project approvals on the design, project developnKnt,
construction, submission of permit applications and town zoning requirements,
and licensure and compliance standards.

implemented New Reimbursement System, 2015

•  Eliminated the Division's dependence on grant funding by successfully procuring
contracts and credentialing with NH Medlcaid, MCO's, and Commercial
insurance companies creating eligibility to submit claims on a fee-for-scrvicebasis
stabilizing revenue and enhancing rates for service.

•  Successfully negotiated a contract amendment with DHHS to expand billable
services to include Outpatient and Intensive Outpatient services resulting in an
increase to from $1.8 MIL (o $2.5MIL

Expert Panelist - Guidance Document on Best Practices: CommLinity-Bascd
MAT for Opioid Use Disorders in New Hampshire. First Edition, 2016

Chic Involvement
t'..

2019-

2017-

2016-

2016-

2017-

2018^

2016-

Prcsent

Present

Present

2018

Present

Present

2017

MWV Supports Recovery
North Country Serenity Ccr^BOD' ^
Stand-Up Androscoggin \jfiUry Coition
Project Aware, BHS,Ad\^qiyf;&ai^
Littleton ATOD Coalitionjt^ " rf
Lancaster Area Coalilic|f i 2
NCHC Board of DircctqX "5"' MV. "

\t

- Officer

- Member

-Member.!

-.'MctnbCT

- -Kiember'
Memb^.
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Skills

1 Creative flair Good sense of humor Excellent written and

oral communication

.skills

Community

"Ir
Cultural intelligence Well- informed in

policy and procedure
development

Pfo^^ent in Office Versatile and

adaptable
Proficient in budget
development and
management

SiJution focused
'p^blem resolution

Computer and
technology adept

Lateral thinking and
logical reasoning

tf^que leadership
j^ugh empowerment

Knowledgeable grant
writer

Innovative

iDetail oriented Creative strategic
planner

Experienced non
profit management

Excellent Community
and political relations

Advocacy Approachable,
relatable, and relevant

Education

Plymouth State University, Plymouth NH.
2017-ln Progress [Business Administration
Coursework: accounting, economics, finance, management, marketing theories
and practices of business ethics and social responsibility, quantitative skills to
analyze.

White Mountains Community College, Berlin NH.
2015>2017 [Business Administration
Coursework: management, accounting, finance, strategy, economics, statistics,
marketing, operations/project management, entrepreneurship, and computer
applications. Complete requirements of the first two years of a fom-year
business administration degree, AS-equivalent, 4.0 GPA
White Mountains Community College, Berlin NH.
2011 ̂Leadership North Country
Coursework: The program selects a diverse group aspiring leaders in northem
New Hampshire through a competitive nomination and application process.
Candidates participate in a 9-montb progihm focused on education, arts and
culture, leadership and civil engagement, travel and tourism, and government
and politics.

References

Available upon request

,...1
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Gerald F. Milliken, Jr.

Executive Summaiy:

Enthusiastic, dedicated and hardworking professional, offering over 20 years of
broad-based experience in Project Direction, policy and procedural development,
training & development, budget administration and business operations within fast-
paced environment.

Experience:

Trl-County Community Action Program, Inc.
Department Head: Weatherization & Facllitles Operations

Berlin, NH
7-1-2020 to present

Design and Operational guidance of Weatherization Programs and the Agencies Facilities
Depalment. Observe, analyze, and offer suggestions on current operations.
Establishing professional relationships with dients, staff, and other stakeholders.
Maintaning relationships with clients and finding creative ways to expand the programs
effectiveness.

Tri-County Community Action Program, Inc.
Program Manager/ Director: Weatherization & Employment Programs

Berlin, NH
4-1-13 to 6-31-2020

Provide leadership and oversight to progran's operations, budgets and reporting: --
Coordinate and Integrate programs' activities.
Hire, supervise and manage staff, induding in-house and itinerant employees.
Prepare grants and proposals.
Develop, prepare and Implement program budgets, narratives.
Review and recondle program finandal reports for reimbursement.
Interact with program monitors, outside auditors, Federal agency auditors and others in
review of program adivities, compliance and financial accountability
Develop new programs and funding streams as appropriate.

Trl-County Community Action Program, Inc.
Crew Chief/ State Certified Energy Auditor Berlin. NH 5-1-05 to 4-1-15



Northern Express Eatery, Inc. North Conway, NH
President 1 General Manager 11-1-2002 to 5-15-2005
Estimated food and beverage costs, requisitioning and purchasing supplies
Assisted subordinates in identifying and resolving problems.
Conferred with food preparation and other personnel to plan menus and related
activities.

Directed hiring and assignment of personnel.
Investigated and resolved food quality and service complaints.
Maintained all records and produced reports.
Executed daily operations of restaurant management.

Hatfield-Reynolds Electric an lES, Inc. Company Phoenix, AZ
Project Manager 5-15-2000 to 10-30-2002
Applied knowledge of the construction trade in the daily operatiori of duties.
Reviewed project proposals to determine time frame, funding limitations, procedures
for Accomplishing project, staffing requirements and allotment of available resources
to various phases of projects.

ISO Enterprises, Inc. Lake Havasu City. AZ
President! Genera/Manager 6-1-1994to5-15-2000
Purchased ARTISAN ELECTRIC. INC. and changed the name.
Contracted to perform specified construction work across the state of Arizona in
accordance with architect's plans, blueprints, codes and other specifications.
Estimated costs of materials, labor and use of equipment required to fulfill provisions
of contract and prepared bids.
Conferred with clients to negotiate terms of contract.
Assisted subordinates in Identifying and resolving problems.
Demonstrated effective presentation skills.



Education:

NHTI Concord

Associates Degree in Electronic Technology 1985
Theory

LRCC Laconia
Electrical Systems Installation & Maintenance. 1988
Required for Journeymen electrical testing and State
Licenses.

Additional Training:

8 CUE training course for Grant writing fornon- profits.To enhance my position on the
board of at Children Unlimited, Inc.

Successfully completed GE'sprestigious "SIX SIGMA" management course in 2001
While Em ployed with
Hatfield-Reynotds Electric an lES, he. Company Phoenix, A2.
Successfully completed training courses and seminars for, lead safe work practices,
asbestos awareness, OSHA30. CPR,electricalcode updates.
Successfully completed Business management classes in AZ
During the 1995-2001.
Successfully completed training and testing to be a NH State certified Energy Auditor
in 2006.

Community:

Board member Children Unlimited, Inc., Conway NH"Non-Profit"
Board member Berlin Revitalization Committee. Berlin NH "Non- Profit"

Past member of the advisory board and co-designer for the Myotonic Dystrophy
Foundations first website.

Previous owner and webmaster for the Myotonic Dystrophy Information website.

License:

Held an Electrical Journeyman license NH
Held an Electrical Contractor License AZ

References: Available upon request.



Nathan H. Mills

Professional Summary and Skti.i.s

Operations Manager with experience and oversite of Financial, Quality Assurance and Operations
components for non-profit organizations and small businesses. Professional, flexible with proven
analytic) skills. Demonstrated record of effective pnoblem solving, sound business judgement and
customer service.

V' Business Development Planning & Budgeting
^ Sage/MIP Fund Accounting, GAAP & ROMA
•' Asset Management

Extensive daily use of Microsoft Excel
Contract Negotiation, Administration & Compliance

PROFESSIONAL EXPRHENCE

Division Operations Manager
Tri-COunty Community Action Program, Berlin, New Hampshire

✓

✓

✓

Staff and Sub-ojntractor Management
Client & Vendor Relations

Volunteer Relations

Certificate, LEAN Six Sigma Green Belt, USM 2016
Certificate, Project Management USM 2014

Since April 2019

Operational, Administrative and Fiscal oversite for Government and Utility funded programs that
provide home efficiency. Insulation and heating system upgrades to Income eligible households in
Carroll, Coos and Grafton Counties, New Hampshire.

• Operational oversight of Utility HEA and HPwES, and Federal DOE and DHHS low Income Weatherization, Heat System
repair and replacement programs.

• . Oversee all aspects of Program Operations and Project Management including; program budget development and
authorization of expenditures according to contracted budget agreements, dient eUgiblllty and program compliance,
hiring training, supervising and evaluating department staff.

Inside Production Manager
TC Hafford Basement Systems, Wells, ME 2018

Inside Production Manager responsible for managing scheduling and close out of dry basement
systems Installs.

• Liaison with homeowner throughout scheduling, install and doseout processes. Liaison with sales team and Outside
Production Manager to ensure proposal, Installation and material costs met client expectations, company standards
and warranty requirements for dry basement systems.

Project Manager
PATG3 Construction, Sanford, ME 2016-2018

Project Manager responsible for managing residential home construction process throughout the
planning, scheduling, material procurement and construction processes,

• Liaison to homeowner throughout entire construction process from contract signing to dosing. Weekly telephone
update and change order estimate and management. Maintain master schedule on Builder Trend project management
software. Schedule sub-contractors, inspect work to project spec., Issue rework and approve invoices for payment
Job cost oversite, materials order1r>g and Inventory mar>agement.

Director, Housing and Energy Services
The Opportunity Alliance, South Portland, ME

2009 - 2016



Business, Fiscal, Operational and Compliance responsibility for federally funded programs that provide
home energy and emergency assistance, HQS home repair, and home efficiency and insulation
upgrades to Income eligible households in Cumberland and York County, Maine.

• Contract, Operational and Fiscal oversight of Federal DOE and DHHS low Income Weatherizatlon, Central Heat
Improvement and EfficlerKy Maine Energy Conservation Programs.

#

• Oversee all sutr-grantee contractual responsibilities of dient intake, certification and benefit determination, program
integrity and compliance for Federal OHHS LfHEAP Grant, providing home heating berrefits to approximately 3,500
low-income Cumberland County households annually-

• Oversee a!) aspects of Program and Project Management Induding; dlent eligibility and program compliance of NMLS
Licerised Agency Lending for HUD, MSHA, Maine DECD and Cumberland County Community Development Program
funding supported home repair, home renovation and energy effldency upgrades of very low to moderate Income
households in Cumberland and Yorlc County.

Business Manager 2006-2009
SmartCatatog, Portland, ME

Managed all business activity for national cataloger providing Office of the Registrar course catalog
and other legally binding documents to colleges and universities In the United States and Canada,

Accounting Associate 2004 - 2006
Southern Maine Agency on Aging, Scartx)rough, ME

Responsible for business office functions of AP/AR and Payroll for non-profit agency. In this position, I
was accounting liaison for a variety of programs among others, and was responsible for accurate
payroll processing for departments that operated 24/7/365.

Retail Cataiog and Advertising Photographer 1998 - 2004
Howeil-Ltd., Portland, ME

Managing studio photographer for New England's first digital commercial photography studio
responsible for project management, process workflow, and capacity and demand management.

Education

Bachelor of Arts, Geography
University of Maine, Farmington, 1983

Continuing Studies, Business, Accounting, Project Management and Human Resources
University of Southern Maine, ongoing

CoMMUNrTY Service

Biddeford School Committee, Vice Chairman

• Co-Chaimian, Curriculum Committee; Finance Committee; Personnel Committee; Chief Negotiator (Collective
Bargaining) Elected to consecutive 2 year terms In 2006 and 2008. Served during period that school system
undertook a $30 million dollar renovation of Biddeford High School.

Ctentral America Volunteer work
Heredia, Costa Rica & San Bernadino Guatemala

Travel to Costa Rica in 2006 & Guatemala In 2008 with a volunteer team to build aitlmber frame vocational center and
water filtration system.

References avaibbie upon request



Dennis Downs

Professional Summary

Skilled Energy Auditor with experience in the Energy Conservation industry. Familiar with a House as a System.
Experienced in Blower Door Testing.

Skills

Self-motivated

Strong verbal communication
Mechanically Inclined
Accustomed to working in all weather conditions
Eager to leam new skills

Goal oriented fast learner

Make safety a priority
Committed to making the client happy
Have knowledge of hand and power tools

Work History

Production Supervisor, 04/1994 to Current

Tri County CAP - 30 Exchange St Berlin NH 03570
•  Supervise multiple weatherization teams doing single family and multi-family installations.
• Oversee maintenance and management of warehouse, including keeping inventory and ordering of

materials.

•  Perform energy audits to determine the most cost effective energy improvements.
• Obtained documents, clearances, certificates and approvals from local, state, and federal agencies.
•  Production management of crews to meet deadlines and budget objectives.
• Working directly with client to achieve a more energy efficient home.

Packer/Inspector, 09/1993 to 04/1994

JenFoot America Inc - Littleton Industrial Park Littleton NH 03561

• Managed a line of three to four workers.
•  Inspected rubber boots for imperfections.

Laborer, 07/1993 to 09/1993

LA Environmental - Louseville Kentucky
• Helped remove sludge fix)m the pollution control lagoons at Simpson Paper Co in Oilman VT.

Apprentice Electrician, 10/1992 to 02/1993

Royal Electric - Woodsville NH
• Work under multiple master electricians wiring the new Lisbon School.

EDUCATION

Associate of Applied Science: Electrical Construction, 1992
NH Vocational Technical College - Prescotl Hill, Laconia, NH 03246

CERTIFICATIONS-

BP! Quality Control Inspector

Lead Safe Renovator

OSHA30

BPl Energy Auditor

CPR/First Aid

V alid Drivers License



JESSICA YOUNG

Skills

'Operational Leadership

'Reporting Requirements

'Proactive Mindset

'Persuasive Communication

Style

•Document Management

•Team Oriented

Education

May 2011-White

Mountain Community

College, Berlin NH

Associates Degree r

Business

Management/Medical

Concentration

Professional Summary

Muiti-talented Program Supervisor driven to optimize processes and improve

productivity to maximize program successes. Extensive experience in management with

a strong work ethic. Excelling and maintaining financial documentation and reporting to

department heads. Polite with a professional approach to daily tasks. Ready to take

each year of my Tri-County Community Action Program career to the next level as the

Office/Program Supervisor for the Weatherization Department.

Work Experience

Office/Program Supervisor: Trl-Countv CAP. Berlin NH: April 2019-CuiTent

In this position I am responsible for program and office functions of the Weatherization

Department. My responsibilities include supervising, providing quality oversite,

inquiring performance measurement, supply training, and/or coordination of training

for the office staff, in coordination with the Division Director, my role is to record

revenues and expenses to our fiscal department, Invoice our funders for payment of

services completed by our weatherization department. I provide guidance to our office

staff on client intake with a priority scheduling focus. I do work coilaboratively with the

Production Supervisor ensuring the scheduling of energy audits is sufficient, I procure

job supplies and materials for weatherization jobs, and give guidance to the

coordination of heating system installations for both failing heating systems and

emergency no-heat situations. I am here to provide supervision and leadership to office

staff, presently including; the Weatherization Administrator and the Procurement,

Inventory and Facilities Specialist.

Office Manager; Gorham Family Dentistry. Gorham NH; Mav 2011- May 2018

Supervised a total of 6 staff members. Managed IT problems and issues with research and technical support. Controlled

computer issues by trouble-shooting issues in the network. Maintained computerized schedules for 3 doctors and 2

h^ienists. Implemented a plan for each new student dentist from UNE every 3 months. Handled insurance claims,

entered Insurance payments, adjusted patients ledgers, and administered bills via mall. Answered multi-line telephone

while checking patients in and out. Created treatment plans and discussed payment options with patients. Was

responsible for staff and patient relations. Created marketing ideas for Facebook and newspapers. Trained staff on front

end procedures. Enforced HIPAA guidelines by coordinating annual trainings for HIPAA compliance. Scheduled meetings

for open enrollment and coordinated Afiac representation to assist with secondary options.

Customer Service Manager; Walmart. Gorham NH; October 2000-0ctober 2008

Supervised staff members from several departments throughout the store. Trained new hires on front end procedures

and effective time management. Scheduled cashiers and service desk associate to designated areas while maintaining

the schedule throughout the day Implementing reliefs for breaks, lunches, and end of shifts. Attended Share Holders

meetings in reference to stock owned and new options coming up. Managed storewide associate register issues and/or

customer relation questions. Collected surplus of cash in register tills to drop off to the accounting office. Designated

associates during each shift to assist with reot^anizing the stock on shelves for customer accessibility.



Samantha Roy'

Qualifications

ACCURATE I EFFICIENT I DETAILED
Comprehensive knowledge of acojunting principles, pajToll, and tax laws. Extraordintiy attenrion to detail with
keen ability to prepare and anal>v.c financial reports. Expertise in Word, Excel, QuidtBooks software, and tax
pccparaiion software. Familiar with entering data, filing, smridng invoices, billing, and papng anpJo>-ecs. Williogncss
to go above and bej-ond job description. Fast learner with proven abiiitj' to adapt to new technology, procedures,
and office equipment.

Areas of Expertise

Accounts Pa)'able/Rccdvabie
^ Recepdonisi
^ Dau Input

Bank Recondlliation

Professional Experience
WEAT

^ l^andal Reporting
Month-End Qosings
10 Kc)' by Toud^

^ 'I'ax Return Preparation

Accounting Software
^ Excel Spreadsheets
^ Microsoft Word

Power Point

HERIZATION ADMINISTRATOR

TRJ-COUNTYCOMMUNl-n'ACnON PROGRAM Berlin, NH 03570 603-752-7001
Eleven months experience in dcrical and cootdinarion work. Duties indude: maintaining heating systems
programs data collcctioo, assisting with wcarhcrizarion reporting, coordinating hat system work, papawork,
subconttacror contracts, receiving and processing dicnt calls for ail programs and ftmding. responding to client
calls, referrals, and fwl vcndore, managing wathcrization fleet, and performing basic office functions.
SERVICE ADVISOR

BERJJN CITY FORD Gorham,NH 03570 603-752-6644
Four years aperience of dcrical work and customer scn'icc. Daily duties induded managing group of technidans
and dispatching work asschcduled. Work induded: answering phones, customer semce, filing, coping invoices,

cnrt)', recording and tracking invenioty, inputting new inventor)', invoidng, prrtmoting and sdling
service, managing technidans, and maintaining accounts pajtblc and acaiunts receivable.

INSIDF. SAI KS pRPRESENTATIVE

PORTl^ND GLASS Gorham,NH 03581 603-752-5507
Two yars experience of dcrical work as an inside Sales Representative and tjperating of the store daily. Duties
induded: answering phones, cu.stomcr service, filing, copjing, invoicing, scheduling, quoting, nping, data cotty,
monthly inventory, rccdving product, oixlcring product, receiving and coding bills, expense reports, making bank
deposits, doscout reports, contacting vendors, entering payroll, wage tiansgers, and monthly finandal statements.

Volunteer Experience
VOLUNTEER TAX PREPARKft

FAMILY RESOURCE CENTER Gorham, NH 03581 603-466-5190
Volunteered for the VITA Program. Accurately worked on and prepared Individual and Small Business Federal
Income Tax letums. Assisted in the prqiaration of Vcnnont state tax returns, as well as Residait Alitai's tax
returns. Highly capable of prqjaring tax returns with sodal security income, retircracot income, tuition statements,
uncmplojTOcnt income, interest on bank accounts, and dividends from banks. Internal Revenue Scrvia Certified
Tax F^parer for 2010 A 2011 tax returns.

Education

WHITE MOUNTAINS COMMUNITY COIJJiGE
Assodatcs D^rccs: Accounting & Business Administration
Certificate: Enttcpenucrship
Bcriin, NH 03570

PHI THETA KAPPA

WTiirc Mountains Community G>llq5C
President 2011-2012

Member Since 2010
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